


amag1 TEL: +91 80 4663 4444 
CIN:U73100KA2008PTC045144 

BOARD'S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

The Board of Directors of Amagi Media Labs Private Limited (the "Company") presents herewith the 16th 

Board's Report together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 

2024. 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

The key highlights of the Company's financial performance for the year under review along with the

previous year's figures on standalone and consolidated basis are given hereunder:

(in l Million) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated 

Total Income 5,077.67 9,422.38 3,604.70 

Total Expenditure 7,215.99 11,791.81 7,078.09 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (2,138.32) (2,369.43) (3,473.39) 

Current Tax - 212.72 -

Deferred Tax - (132.14) -

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (2,138.32) (2,450.01) (3,473.39) 

*Note - Previous year's figures have been arranged/regrouped, wherever necessary.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:

7,247.17 

10,395.87 

(3,148.70) 

255.43 

(191.45) 

(3,212.68) 

During the year under review, the Company recorded operating revenues of {9,422.38 Million

(Consolidated) and {5,077.67 Million (Standalone), an increase of 30% (Consolidated) and 40.9%

(Standalone) as compared to operating revenues of U,247.17 Million (Consolidated) and l3,604.70

Million (Standalone) earned in the previous financial year. Net loss after tax for the year under

review is l2,450.01 Million (Consolidated) and {2,138.32 Million (Standalone), a decrease of 23.7%

(Consolidated) and 38.4% (Standalone) as compared to the net loss of l3,212.68 Million

(Consolidated) and l3,4 73.39 Million (Standalone) incurred in the previous financial year.

3. DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year under review.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES AND SURPLUS:

During the year under review, the Company sustained a loss and therefore, no amount has been

transferred to the Reserves and Surplus Account.
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5. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. DIRECTORS:
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The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2024, is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN Designation 

1. Mr. Baskar Subramanian 02014529 Managing Director 

2. Ms. Srividhya Srinivasan 02014532 Whole-time Director 

3. Mr. Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu 02014527 Director 

4. Mr. Nishant Kanuru Rao 08972606 Nominee Director 

5. Mr. Sandesh Kaveripatnam 02261222 Non-Executive Additional 

Director 

6. Mr. Shantanu Rastogi 06732021 Nominee Director 

7. Mr. Shekhar Kirani Hanumanthasetty 02384548 Nominee Director 

During the year under review, Mr. Atul Gupta (DIN: 06940578) resigned from the position of 

Nominee Director with effect from November 03, 2023. 

Further, Mr. Sandesh Kaveripatnam was appointed as a Non-Executive Additional Director 

representing PI Opportunities Fund-I, PI Opportunities Fund-II and PI Opportunities Fund I 

Scheme-II ("PIOF Nominee Director") with effect from January 15, 2024. Mr. Kaveripatnam 

was appointed as a Non-Executive Nominee Director at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting 

held on May 10, 2024. 

Further, Mr. Baskar Subramanian and Ms. Srividhya Srinivasan were re-appointed as the 

Managing Director and Whole-time Director respectively, to hold office up to December 12, 

2026. 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

B. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to Rule 8A of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014, Ms. Kusum Gore, a qualified Company Secretary holding membership

number A414 77 was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from

September 27, 2023.
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6. BOARD MEETINGS:

The meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days

between two consecutive meetings. The Board of Directors met 5 (five) times during the financial

year 2023-24. The details of the dates of Meeting and Director's attendance are as below:

Meeting Date of Baskar Srividhya Arunachalam Atul Nishant Shantanu Shekhar Sandesh 

No. Board Subramanian Srinivasan Srinivasan Gupta Kanuru Rao Rastogi Kirani Kaveripatnam 

Meeting Karapattu 
94th 13/06/2023 ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ NA 

95th 27/09/2023 ✓ ✓ ✓ X ✓ ✓ ✓ NA 

96th 21/12/2023 ✓ ✓ X NA ✓ ✓ ✓ NA 

97th 15/01/2024 ✓ ✓ ✓ NA ✓ ✓ ✓ NA 

98th 26/03/2024 ✓ ✓ X NA ✓ ✓ ✓ X 

✓-Present X-Absent NA - Not applicable 

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company invested approximately €3 million (Euro Three Million only), amounting to around

�269.62 million (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Sixty-Nine point Six Two Million only), in Amagi

Media Private Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary in the United Kingdom, by subscribing to its

share capital. Apart from this, the Company has neither extended any loans, guarantees or security

nor made any other investments during the reviewed year.

8. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

There were no contracts, arrangements or transactions entered during the year under review that

fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the disclosure in

Form AOC-2 is not applicable for the financial year 2023-24 and hence does not form part of this

report. However, the disclosure of transactions with related parties during the financial year, as per

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 on Related Party Disclosures, is provided under Note no.

34 to the Annual Audited Standalone Financial Statements.

9. INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE:

The Company has implemented a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the

requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013.

An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress the complaints received regarding

sexual harassment. During the year under review, the Company did not receive any complaints.

10. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors of

the Company hereby report that:

4 

Amagi Media Labs Private Limited 

Raj Alkaa Park, Sy. No. 29/3 & 32/2, 4th Floor, 

Kalena Agrahara Village, Segur Hobli, Bengaluru - 560076 Karnataka 

W: www.amagi.com I E: info@ama2i com 



amag1 TEL: +91 80 4663 4444 
CIN:U73100KA2008PTC045144 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating

to material departures, if applicable;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to Accounts

and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of

the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY:

The auditors have opined in all material respects that adequate internal financial controls have

been established by the Company. The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of

internal audit, review by management and procedures. Internal control is designed to ensure that

the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other data and

for maintaining accountability of assets.

12. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) AND RE- APPOINTMENT, IF ANY:

The Company does not have any Independent Directors on its Board, and therefore, declarations

from Independent Directors are not included.

13. SHARE CAPITAL:

A. Details of changes in the capital structure of the Company:

During the year under review, the Company's capital structure remained unchanged with no

alterations in authorized share capital, issued and paid-up share capital or voting rights.

There were no actions such as reclassification, reduction, or buyback of shares, nor were

there any changes due to restructuring. Additionally, no equity shares with differential voting

rights, convertible securities, sweat equity shares, bonus shares, debentures, bonds or

warrants were issued.
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Employee wise details of the Options granted to: 

a) Key managerial personnel - None
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b) One employee has received a grant of Options amounting to five percent or more of the total

Options granted during the year.

c) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding

one percent of the issued capital ( excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the

company at the time of grant - None

d) Shares held in trust for the benefit of employees where the voting rights are not exercised

directly by the employee: Nil

14. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

As on March 31, 2024, the Company had 4 overseas subsidiaries and 3 step-down subsidiaries. In

accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features

of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is provided. The statement

also provides details of the subsidiaries incorporated during the financial year, their performance

and financial position.

During the year under review, Amagi Media UK Private Limited, a step-down subsidiary of Amagi

Media Private Limited, was incorporated on October 5, 2023 in the United Kingdom, to acquire the

assets and liabilities of Tellyo OY, a Finnish company. On January 3, 2024, it established a branch

office in Poland.

15. AUDITORS:

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.

101049W /E3 00004) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors to hold the office till the

conclusion of the 16th AGM. The Board has recommended their re-appointment as the

Statutory Auditors for another term of five consecutive years, from the conclusion of the 16th 

AGM scheduled to be held in the year 2024, till the conclusion of the 21st AGM to be held in

the year 2029, for approval of Members at the ensuing AGM. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

have confirmed that they satisfy the independence criteria required under the Companies

Act, 2013 and other applicable guidelines and regulations.

Please find below the Board's response to the observations made by S.R. Batliboi & Associates

LLP, in the Auditor's Report:

• The Company does not have servers physically located in India for the daily backup of

the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode.

Response: The Company currently maintains backups of its ERP /Oracle NetSuite data
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at two separate locations, both of which are outside India. At present, Oracle NetSuite 

does not offer the capability for an ERP tenant to independently back up its database. 

Consequently, our compliance with the statutory requirement to host backups on 

servers located within India is constrained by the existing limitations of the vendor's 

infrastructure. 

While this matter remains beyond the direct control of the Company, we are actively 

engaging with the vendor to explore potential solutions. The Company is committed to 

ensuring compliance with all applicable regulations and will continue to closely 

monitor developments, pursuing any viable alternatives that may arise to address this 

situation. 

• The Company has used certain accounting softwares for maintaining its books of

account which have a feature of recording audit trail ( edit log) facility and the same

have operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the

aforesaid softwares, except in respect of three applications used by the Company which

are operated by third-party software service providers, the Service Organization

Controls ("SOC") report was either not available or does not have necessary

information on existence of audit trail and accordingly, we are unable to comment on

whether audit trail feature of the aforesaid softwares was enabled and operated

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares or whether

there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Response: The Company is actively engaging with third-party service providers to

obtain the necessary SOC reports that include information on the audit trail feature.

The Management will continue to engage with both the service providers and auditors

to address and resolve the outstanding issues.

B. INTERNAL AUDITORS:

KPMG Assurance and Consulting Services LLP

The Board at its Meeting held on March 26, 2024, had appointed KPMG Assurance and

Consulting Services LLP (LLP Registration No. AAT-0367) as the Internal Auditors for the

financial year 2023-24 in terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

C. SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

During the year under review, the provisions relating to the Secretarial Audit were not

applicable.

D. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT:

During the year under review, the provisions relating to the maintenance of Cost records and

Cost Audit were not applicable.
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16. REPORTING OF FRAUDS:
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The Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of fraud committed against the Company

by its officers or employees pursuant to Section 134(3)(ca) and provisions of section 143(12) of the

Companies Act, 2013.

17. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Secretarial Standard issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India has

been complied with by the Company during the financial year under review.

18. VIGIL MECHANISM:

Though the Company is not covered under the class or classes of companies prescribed under

Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has voluntarily established a vigil

mechanism for its Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns. The Company has in 

place a Whistle-Blower Policy to encourage the employees to speak up in case they detect any

corrupt, illegal or other undesirable conduct. It also provides adequate safeguards against higher

victimization and direct access to the higher levels of supervisors in appropriate and exceptional

cases.

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ("CSR"):

For the year under review, the provisions related to CSR were applicable as the net worth of the

Company exceeded the prescribed threshold. However, as the Company incurred average net losses

during the three immediately preceding financial years, it was not mandated to make any CSR

contributions in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board at its Meeting held on March 26, 2024, approved the establishment of "Amagi

Foundation", a trust formed for public and charitable purposes and to carry out not for profit and 

CSR activities.

The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at www.amagi.com. The Annual Report

on CSR is attached to this report as ANNEXURE I. As per Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013,

the Board of Directors discharge the functions of the CSR Committee.

The brief salient features of the CSR Policy are -

(i) Outline projects, programs and activities to be undertaken by the Company;

(ii) Specify the modalities of execution of such projects, programs and activities;

(iii) Monitor the process to be followed for such projects, programs and activities; and

(iv) Directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities and enhances the

quality of life and economic well-being of the local populace.
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy. The policy strives to identify the key events /

risks impacting the business objectives of the Company and to develop risk policies and strategies

to ensure timely evaluation, reporting and monitoring of key business risks.

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

are as follows:

A. Conservation of energy:

S. No. Particulars Remarks 

1.

2. 

3. 

The steps taken or impact on Air conditioning is used exclusively in the meeting 

conservation of energy. rooms and LED lighting is utilized to conserve 

energy. Our office is well-ventilated, allowing for 

better natural light and reducing the need for 

excessive artificial lighting. The support staff and 

M&E technicians are trained to switch off lights and 

air conditioning when not in use. 

Carbon Footprint Reduction: We enforce power 

saving settings ( screensavers, idle timeout, sleep) 

across all our endpoints ( desktops & laptops). 

We engage authorized e-waste recyclers for disposal 

of electronic waste and the recent e-waste disposal 

was done in September 2023. 

We use Saas applications that are hosted in energy­

friendly data centers by respective Saas vendors. 

Regular cleanup of Gmail mailbox by the users 

reduces the total storage used up to 5 TB per month. 

The steps taken by the The Company is exploring the option of installing 

Company for utilizing solar panels with the landlord's assistance. 

alternate sources of energy. 

The capital investment on Nil 

energy 

equipment. 

conservation 
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B. Technology absorption:

S. No. Particulars Remarks 

1.

2. 

3. 

The efforts made towards 

technology absorption. 

In our efforts to optimize various functions, we 

leveraged several advanced technologies: 

• For talent acquisition, we used Workable to

streamline recruitment processes and attract

top talent efficiently.

• SAP SuccessFactors ensured effective

management of employee lifecycle processes in

Human Capital Management (HCM).

• We implemented Gealn Enterprise Search for

seamless access to information across data

repositories like Google Drive, Salesforce, and

Confluence.

• For security information and event management

(SIEM), Panther correlated alerts from A WS and

GCP, enhancing our security measures.

• FreshService served as a unified helpdesk portal

for IT and non-IT functions, including HR, work

environment, payables, and purchases, with

automated workflows improving efficiency.

• NetSuite was utilized to manage our

organizational structure and generate MIS

reports, providing valuable insights for strategic

decision-making.

These integrations helped us optimize operations, 

enhance security, and maintain a competitive edge. 

In case of imported The Company has not imported any technology 

technology (imported during the year under review. 

during the last three years 

reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial 

year) 

The expenditure incurred Nil 

on Research and 

Development 
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4. The benefits derived like 
product improvement, cost 
reduction, product 
development or import 
substitution. 
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• We optimized costs and streamlined operations
by terminating redundant Saas subscriptions
like Everstage, Outreach and Zluri.

• Automating HRIS record onboarding
/offboarding in SAP SuccessFactors HCM
reduced human intervention and improved
efficiency. Automatic user deletion in SCIM­
enabled applications and HRIS record
notifications ensured consistent updates.

• Workflow automation in NetSuite, including
procure-to-pay and vendor payment with H2H
Citi Bank, enhanced financial operations.

• Auto-approval based on travel and expense
policies and system-driven merit reviews in
Darwinbox streamlined processes.

• Migrating the acquired entity Tellyo involved
data migration, integration, and standardization,
improving operational consistency.

• These initiatives led to cost reductions, product
improvements, and enhanced efficiency.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outflow in actual terms:

S.No. Particulars Details 

1. Foreign exchange earnings FY 2022-23 - {3,520.13 Million 

FY 2023-24 - H,582.85 Million 

2. Foreign exchange outflow FY 2022-23 - {539.65 Million 

FY 2023-24 - U,908.81 Million 

22. POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 182:

During the year under review, the Company has not made any contribution to the political parties. 

23. ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return is available on 
the website of the Company at www.amagi.com. 
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24. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 

THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO

WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

. There were no material changes and commitments that occurred after the close of the financial year

to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report which are affecting or likely to

affect the financial position of the Company.

25. DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME

OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE

BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

The Company has not taken any loans from Banks or Financial Institutions. Hence, the disclosure

required to be made pertaining to the details of the difference between the amount of the valuation

done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking a loan from the Banks

or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable.

26. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

27. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR:

During the year under review, there has been no case filed by or against the Company under the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

28. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS/ CHANGE OF NAME:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business activities

conducted by the Company or its name.

29. DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of

Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,

2014.

Further, the Company is annually filing with the Registrar of Companies requisite return in e-form

DPT-3 for submitting the details of the transactions by a Company not considered as deposit as per 

Rule 2(1)(c) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.
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30. LOANS FROM DIRECTORS AND RELATIVES OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any unsecured loans either from

Directors or their relatives.

31. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The requirements of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014 relating to disclosure of remuneration is not applicable to private limited

companies, hence not included as part of this report.

32. AWARDS AND RECOGNITION:

Please refer Page 18 for the awards and recognition earned by the Company during the year under

review.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the sincere and dedicated efforts of all

employees at all the levels. The Directors would also like to thank the Shareholders, Bankers and

other Business associates for their sustained support, patronage, and cooperation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
AMAGI MEDIA LABS PRIVATE LIMITED 

..-,

Managing Director 
DIN: 02014529 

Place: Boston, USA

Date:August28,2024 
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Annexure-1 

ANNUAL REPORT 

ON 

CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

In adherence to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors has approved the CSR policy. Please see

below the brief outline of the CSR Policy:

(i) Ensuring that our activities extend beyond business and include initiatives and endeavors for

the benefit and development of the community and society;

(ii) Lays down the guidelines for undertaking programs geared towards social welfare activities

or initiatives;

(iii) Adoption of short, medium and long-term CSR programs and initiatives; and

(iv) Undertake the CSR activities directly and also through various implementing agencies such as

NGO's, non-profit organizations, etc.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Pursuant to Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors discharge the

functions of the CSR Committee as the amount proposed to be spent by the Company does not

exceed �50,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifty Lakhs only).

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company: The CSR Policy is

disclosed on the website of the Company at www.amagi.com.

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects

carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable
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5. 

6. 

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Nil
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Nil
( c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial

years: Nil
( d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Nil

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Nil
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
( c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the financial year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Nil
( e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable

Amount unspent (in 't) Total amount 

spent for the 

financial year 

(in 't) 

Total amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

Not applicable 

Name of the 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable

S.No

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Particular Amount 

(in 't) 

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub- section -

(5) of section 135

Total amount spent for the financial year -

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the -

previous financial years, if any 

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -
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7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S. No. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Deficiency, 

financial transferred amount spent in transferred to a remaining if any 

year(s) to Unspent in the Fund as specified to be spent 

CSR Unspent financial under Schedule VII in the 

Account CSR year as per second succeeding 

under sub- Account (in :f) proviso to sub- financial 

section (6) under section (5) of years. 

of section sub- section 13 5, if any (int) 

135 section 

(int) (6) of
Amount Date of 

section
(in :f) transfer 

135 

(int) 

Not Applicable 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the financial year: ¥€s:;.-f- No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per subsection (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

AMAGI MEDIA LABS PRIVATE LIMITED 

BASKAR SUBRAMANIAN 

Managing Director 

DIN: 02014529 

Place: Boston, USA 

Date: August 28, 2024 
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Sd/-

SRIVIDHAY SRINIVASAN

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 02014532

Sd/-







PART "B": ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES 
(Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

The Company does not have any Associates or Joint Ventures as of March 31, 2024. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
AMAGI MEDIA LABS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Managing Director 
DIN:02014529 

Place: Boston, USA 
Date: August 28, 2024 

KUSUM GORE 
Company Secretary 

A41477 

Place: Bangalore, India 
Date: August 28, 2024 

2 

�IVIDHYA SRINIVASAI{; 
Whole-time Director 

DIN:02014532 

Place: Boston, USA 
Date: August 28, 2024 

            Sd/- 
VIJAY NP 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Bangalore, India 
Date: August 28, 2024 

BASKAR SUBRAMANIAN

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of Amagi Media Labs Private Limited 
  
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Amagi Media Labs Private 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss), the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income/(loss), its cash flows and the changes 
in equity for the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 
 
Other Information  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 
 
 
 
 



 
Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books except in respect of certain applications 
where the Company does not have servers physically located in India for the daily backup of 
the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode as disclosed in 
Note 48 to the standalone financial statements and the matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g). 
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act; 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 
 



(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 
below (i) (vi) on reporting under Rule 11 (g). 
 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone 
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report; 

 
(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the 

Company for the year ended March 31, 2024; 
 

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

its standalone financial statements – Refer Note 39 to the standalone financial statements;  
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv. a)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 47 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 47 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received 
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 
c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement. 
 

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 
 
 
 



vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, and as explained in note 48 to the
standalone financial statements, the Company has used certain accounting softwares for
maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same have operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the aforesaid softwares, except in respect of three applications used by the
Company which are operated by third-party software service providers, the Service
Organization Controls report was either not available or does not have necessary
information on existence of audit trail and accordingly, we are unable to comment on
whether audit trail feature of the aforesaid softwares was enabled and operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares or whether there were any
instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Further, during the course of our audit, except as detailed above in respect of three
applications, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with in respect of the softwares where audit trail has been enabled.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Rajeev Kumar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 213803 
UDIN: 24213803BKGWNE7711 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 August 2024 

Sd/-



Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements” of our report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Amagi Media 
Labs Private Limited 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we state that: 

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There are no immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has provided interest free loans to other parties (i.e., employees)
as follows: 

Particulars Advances in the nature of loans 
(Rs. Million) 

Aggregate amount of loan granted during the 
year - Others (i.e., employees) 

0.92 

Balance outstanding as at the balance sheet 
date - Others (i.e., employees) 

0.39 

Other than the above, during the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the 
nature of loans, stood guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties.  

(b) During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans to other parties (i.e., employees)
are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.



       (c) During the year, the Company has granted interest free loans to other parties (i.e., employees) 
where the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts 
are regular.  

 
       (d) There are no amounts of interest free loans granted to other parties (i.e., employees) which are 

overdue for more than ninety days.  
 
       (e) There were no loans granted to other parties (i.e., employees) which were fallen due during the 

year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing 
loans given to the same parties.  

 
       (f)  The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

          
(iv)     In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, 

there are no loans, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. The loans, investments, 
guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are applicable have been complied by the Company. 

 
 (v)        The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts 

which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

  
(vi)      The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the Company. 
 
(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 

statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, duty of custom and other statutory dues applicable to it.  

 
 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures 

performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were 
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

 
       (b)  According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of goods and services tax, provident 

fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, 
value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute. 

   
(viii)    The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the 

books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

  
 (ix) (a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any 

lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  

             



        (b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

 
        (c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Hence, the requirement 

to report on clause(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
        (d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause 

(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
        (e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 

taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries. 

 
        (f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

 
(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further 

public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.  

 
      (b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or 

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 (xi)(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 

year. 
 
      (b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in 

Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government. 

 
      (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 

Company during the year. 
 
(xii)    The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement 

to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required 
by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the 
Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as 
it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xiv) (a)The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business. 
 

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period 
under audit have been considered by us. 

 
(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 

connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 



(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance   activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment company forming part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs.2,025.97 million.  In
the immediately preceding financial year, the Company had incurred cash losses amounting to
Rs. 3,397.60 million.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 45 to the standalone financial statements, the
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company and our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(xx) The provisions of Section 135(5) and Section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Rajeev Kumar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 213803 
UDIN: 24213803BKGWNE7711 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 August 2024 

Sd/-



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AMAGI MEDIA LABS PRIVATE LIMITED  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of 
Amagi Media Labs Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these 
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone 
financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets 
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Rajeev Kumar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 213803 
UDIN: 24213803BKGWNE7711 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 August 2024 

Sd/-



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

Notes As at  31 March 2024 As at  31 March 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 164.06   106.84   
Capital work in progress 3 -   49.35   
Other intangible assets 4 41.49   1.40   
Right-of-use assets 5 182.06   235.77   
Financial assets

(i) Investments 6 459.32   191.73   
(ii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 3.05   3.05   
(iii) Other financial assets 7 19.18   24.35   

Income tax assets (net) 8 62.14   21.44   
Other non-current assets 9 492.27   568.53   
Total non-current assets 1,423.57   1,202.46   

Current assets
Financial assets

(i) Investments 6 631.11   2,637.61   
(ii) Trade receivables 10 1,082.61   1,254.58   
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,137.96   6,930.92   
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 5,142.01   -   
(v) Loans 13 0.39   19.81   
(vi) Other financial assets 14 556.70   560.06   

Other current assets 15 421.53   542.06   
Total current assets 9,972.31   11,945.04   

Total assets 11,395.88   13,147.50   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital 16A 4.75   4.75   
Instrument entirely in the nature of equity 16B 8,748.14   8,748.14   
Other equity 17 (3,991.05)   (2,737.05)   
Total equity 4,761.84   6,015.84   

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 18 170.09   199.52   
(ii) Other financial liabilities 19 3,901.89   55.72   

Provisions 20 109.65   52.66   
Other non-current liabilities 21 1.93   531.03   
Total non-current liabilities 4,183.56   838.93   

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 18 23.55   31.38   
(ii) Trade payables 22

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25.10   20.00   
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small  enterprises 1,552.10   1,579.89   

(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 335.14   4,030.04   
Provisions 24 94.05   51.94   
Other current liabilities 25 420.54   579.48   
Total current liabilities 2,450.48   6,292.73   

Total equity and liabilities 11,395.88   13,147.50   

Corporate information and summary of material accounting policies 1 & 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants      Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U73100KA2008PTC045144

per Rajeev Kumar Baskar Subramanian Srividhya Srinivasan
Partner Whole-time Director
Membership number: 213803 DIN: 02014529 DIN: 02014532

Place: Boston, USA Place: Boston, USA
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Kusum Gore Vijay NP
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A41477

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Managing Director

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended 
31 March 2024

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 26 4,458.99   3,154.23   
Other income 27 618.68   450.47   
Total income (I) 5,077.67   3,604.70   

Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 28A -   0.35   
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of traded goods 28B (0.35)   (0.35)   
Employee benefits expense 29 3,129.20   3,380.64   
Finance costs 30 31.32   20.25   
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 112.35   75.79   
Other expenses 32 3,943.47   3,601.41   
Total expenses (II) 7,215.99   7,078.09   

Loss before tax (III = I-II) (2,138.32)   (3,473.39)   
Tax expense:
  Current tax -   -   

   Deferred tax -   -   
Total tax expense (IV) -   -   

Loss for the year (V=III-IV) (2,138.32)   (3,473.39)   

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan (33.51)   3.63   
Income tax effect -   -   
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax (VI) (33.51)   3.63   

Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year  (VII=V+VI) (2,171.83)   (3,469.76)   

.
Basic (Rs) 33 (393.14)   (666.74)   
Diluted (Rs) (393.14)   (666.74)   

Corporate information and summary of material accounting policies 1 & 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants      Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U73100KA2008PTC045144

per Rajeev Kumar Baskar Subramanian Srividhya Srinivasan
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership number: 213803 DIN: 02014529 DIN: 02014532

Place: Boston, USA Place: Boston, USA
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Kusum Gore Vijay NP
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A41477

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Earnings per Equity share  [Nominal value of share Rs 5 each (31 March 2023: Rs 5 each)]

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-

Sd/-



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Equity shares of Rs 5 each (Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital) Number of Shares Amount

As at April 01, 2022 10,25,428   5.13   
Issued during the year -  -  
Buy-back during the year (Refer note (a) below) (76,533)  (0.38)   
As at March 31, 2023 9,48,895  4.75   
Issued during the year -  -  
As at March 31, 2024 9,48,895  4.75   

CCPS of Rs 100 each (Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital) Number of Shares Amount

As at April 01, 2022 36,17,500   5,289.70   
Conversion of OCPS to CCPS (Refer note (a) below) 2,14,419   1,678.56   
Issued during the year (Refer note (b) below) 3,35,854   33.64   
As at March 31, 2023 41,67,773   7,001.90   
Issued during the year -   -   
As at March 31, 2024 41,67,773   7,001.90   

OCPS of Rs 100 each (Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital) Number of Shares Amount

As at April 01, 2022 4,44,056  3,424.80   
Conversion of OCPS to CCPS (Refer note (a) below) (2,14,419)  (1,678.56)  
Issued during the year -  -   
As at March 31, 2023 2,29,637  1,746.24   
Conversion of OCPS to CCPS -   -   
Issued during the year -  -   
As at March 31, 2024 2,29,637  1,746.24   

c. Other equity

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Securities 
premium

(Refer note 17)

Employee stock 
options 

outstanding 
(Refer note 17)

Capital 
redemption 

reserve
(Refer note 17)

Retained Earnings
(Refer note 17)

Fair value of equity 
instrument

(Refer note 17)

As at April 1, 2023 14,128.78   968.57   0.38   (20,124.90)   2,290.12   (2,737.05)  
Add: Loss for the year -   -   -   (2,138.32)   -   (2,138.32)  
Add: Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):

 - Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability -   -   -   (33.51)   -   (33.51)  
-  837.83  -   -   -   

837.83   
-   -   -   -   80.00   80.00   

As at March 31, 2024 14,128.78   1,806.40   0.38   (22,296.73)   2,370.12   (3,991.05)  
-22,29,67,26,437.32 18,305.68   

For the year ended March 31, 2023 18,30,56,80,073.92   

Securities 
premium

(Refer note 17)

Employee stock 
options 

outstanding 
(Refer note 17)

Capital 
redemption 

reserve
(Refer note 17)

Retained Earnings
(Refer note 17)

Fair value of equity 
instrument

(Refer note 17)

As at April 1, 2022 8,743.03   -   -   (16,655.14)   2,210.12   (5,701.99)  
Add: Loss for the year -   -   -   (3,473.39)   -   (3,473.39)  
Add: Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):

 - Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability -   -   -   3.63  -   3.63   

-  968.57  -   -   -   968.57   
Add: Premium on issue of CCPS (Refer note (b) below) 6,517.41   -  -   -   -   6,517.41   
Less: Utilised for buy-back of shares (Refer note (a) below) (917.53)  -   -   -   -   (917.53)  
Less: Utilised for tax on buy-back of shares (Refer note (a) below) (213.75)  -   -   -   -   (213.75)  
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve (Refer note (a) below) (0.38)   -   0.38   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   80.00   80.00   
As at March 31, 2023 14,128.78   968.57   0.38   (20,124.90)   2,290.12   (2,737.05)  

Add: Compensation cost related to employee share based payment (Refer note 
41)

Add: Fair value of equity instrument (Refer note 46)

a. Equity share capital

Total other equity

(b) During the previous year, the Company issued 3,35,854 Series F CCPS to new shareholders at consideration of Rs 19,505.54 per share. Accordingly, the Company has recorded Rs 100 per share as preference
share capital and the balance amount of Rs 19,405.54 per share is recorded as Securities Premium on issue of shares under 'Reserves and Surplus'. Consequent to the above, the shareholders of the Company have
entered in a restated Shareholders Agreement (SHA) on 14 October 2022 which defines the rights and restrictions of each shareholder. The new SHA supersedes the earlier SHA which was entered into by the
shareholders on 25 August 2021, 13 December 2016 and 10 March 2022.

Add: Compensation cost related to employee share based payment (Refer note 
41)

Add: Fair value of equity instrument (Refer note 46)

Total other equity

(a) During the previous year, the Shareholders approved a resolution to buy back 76,533 ordinary equity shares having a face value of Rs 5 each fully paid-up at a buy-back price of Rs, 11,993.63 each amounts to
Rs. 917.91 million. The Company has paid buy-back tax of Rs. 213.75 Million. The Company created capital redemption reserve (CRR) equal to the nominal value of the shares bought-back amounting to Rs.
0.38 million as an appropriation from securities premium reserve.

(a) During the previous year, 214,419 OCPS were converted into CCPS at the request of the shareholders, such conversion was taken on record by the board of directors of the Company in their meeting held on
11 October 2022.

b. Instrument entirely in the nature of equity

Reserves and Surplus

Reserves and Surplus



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information and summary of material accounting policies 1 & 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants      Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U73100KA2008PTC045144

per Rajeev Kumar Baskar Subramanian Srividhya Srinivasan
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership number: 213803 DIN: 02014529 DIN: 02014532

Place: Boston, USA Place: Boston, USA
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Kusum Gore Vijay NP
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A41477

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

[This Space has been intentionally left blank]

(a) During the previous year, the Shareholders approved a resolution to buy back 76,533 ordinary equity shares having a face value of Rs 5 each fully paid-up at a buy-back price of Rs.11,993.63 each amounting
to Rs. 917.53 million. The Company has paid buy-back tax of Rs. 213.75 Million. The Company created Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR) equal to the nominal value of the shares bought-back of Rs. 0.38
million as an appropriation from securities premium reserve.

(b) During the previous year, the Company issued 3,35,854 Series F CCPS to  new shareholders at consideration of Rs 19,505.54 per share. Accordingly, the Company has recorded Rs 100 per share as preference
share capital and the balance amount of Rs 19,405.54 per share is recorded as Securities Premium on issue of shares under ' Reserves and Surplus'.  Consequent to the above, the shareholders of the Company 
have entered in a restated Shareholders Agreement (SHA) on 14 October 2022 which defines the rights and restrictions of each shareholder. The new SHA supersedes the earlier SHA which was entered into by 
the shareholders on 25 August 2021, 13 December 2016 and 10 March 2022.

Sd/- Sd/-
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Sd/-
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Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
Standalone Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
For the year ended 

31 March 2024
For the year ended 

31 March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (2,138.32)   (3,473.39)   
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 112.35   75.79   
(Reversal)/ Allowance for expected credit losses 32 (30.30)   (1.27)   
Bad debts written off 32 10.19   16.96   
Fair value of financial  instrument (refer note 46) 32 80.00   80.00   
Provision for Inventory -   0.95   
Fair value gain on investment measured at FVTPL 27 (41.49)   (121.80)   
Employee stock compensation expense 29 517.19   948.69   
Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) expense 29 81.64   477.38   
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 32 (6.55)   (90.23)   
Gain on sale of investment measured at FVTPL 27 (71.47)   (54.19)   
Interest income 27 (503.43)   (178.85)   
Unwinding income on deposits from customers 27 (1.55)   (2.63)   
Interest expense 30 29.37   18.44   
Operating loss before working capital changes (1,962.37)   (2,304.15)   

Movement in Working capital changes:
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables (22.70)  951.98   
Increase in provisions 65.58   36.53   
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities (688.04)   134.72   
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities 396.29   (39.11)   
Decrease in trade receivables 198.63   85.66   
(Increase) / decrease in inventories -   (0.35)   
Decrease / (increase) in loans and other financial assets 99.21   (539.93)   
Decrease / (increase) in other assets 185.89   (607.08)   
Cash flows used in operating activities (1,727.51)   (2,281.73)   
Income tax (paid)/refunded, net (40.70)   40.03   
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (1,768.21)   (2,241.70)   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including capital work-in-
progress and capital advances (104.32)   (151.71)   
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment -   0.14   
Investments in bank deposits,net (5,142.00)   -   
Investments in mutual funds (2,320.96)   (4,199.86)   
Redemption of mutual funds 4,440.42   1,738.24   
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiary (272.90)   (3.11)   
Advances to subsidiaries 19.54   (19.54)   
Interest received 412.72   126.58   
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (2,967.50)   (2,509.26)   

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of share capital -   6,551.05   
Buy back of equity shares -   (1,131.66)   
Principal payment of lease liability (29.61)   (21.32)   
Interest payment of lease liability (27.64)   (15.78)   
Net cash flows (used) in / from financing activities (C) (57.25)   5,382.29   

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (4,792.96)   631.33   
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 6,930.92   6,299.59   
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 2,137.96   6,930.92   

Components of cash and cash equivalents
As at 

31 March 2024
As at 

31 March 2023

Cash on hand 0.01   0.01   
Balance with banks
- on current account 104.68   212.61   
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 2,033.27   6,718.30   
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,137.96   6,930.92   



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
Standalone Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation between opening and closing balance sheet for liabilities arising from financial activities:

Opening Balance Non-Cash Movement Closing Balance

March 31, 2024
Lease liabilities (including interest) 230.91   19.98   193.64
Total liabilities from financing activities 230.91   19.98  193.64

Opening Balance Non-Cash Movement Closing Balance

March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities (including interest) 10.08   257.93   230.91   
Total liabilities from financing activities 10.08   257.93  230.91   

Corporate information and summary of material accounting policies 1 & 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statementsManaging Director 255.43   Whole-time Director

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants      
Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

per Rajeev Kumar Baskar Subramanian Srividhya Srinivasan
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
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Place: Boston, USA Place: Boston, USA
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Kusum Gore Vijay NP
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A41477
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Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Amagi Media Labs Private Limited
CIN: U73100KA2008PTC045144

(37.10)   

Cash Flow

(57.25)   

Cash Flow
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(57.25)   
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Amagi Media Labs Private Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. Corporate information

Amagi Media Labs Private Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on 01 February 2008 and has its Registered 
Office in Bengaluru. The company is engaged in media technology business that provides cloud enabled television 
broadcasting and content delivery, television advertisement related services and trading of certain integrated 
receiver and decoder and other devices. 

The Company's standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, were approved by Board of 
Directors on August 28, 2024. 

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from 
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind-AS 
compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the company.  

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Standalone Financial Statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value as mentioned below. 

- share-based payments – measured at fair value
- certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (its functional currency) and all values are 
rounded off to the nearest millions up to two decimals place, except where otherwise indicated.  

2.2 Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 
(i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
(iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: 

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counter party, result its settlement by the issue
of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2.3 Foreign currency translation 

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The standalone financial 
statements are presented in Indian rupee (Rs), which is functional and presentation currency of the Company. 

ii) Transactions and balances:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of 
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

iii) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

2.4 Fair value measurement 

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, in its absence, the most 
advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk.  

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the 
end of each reporting period. 

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. Such cost comprises of the purchase price and any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates 
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant 
and equipment.  



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ 
part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from 
that of the remaining asset. Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment 
are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, 
based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated separately 
over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company 
has used the following lives to provide depreciation: 

Assets Classification 
Useful lives 
(in years) 

Plant and equipment 3 
Computers 3 
Furniture and fixtures 5 
Office equipment 5 

Considering the usage pattern, the management has estimated above useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
which is supported by internal technical assessment. 

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the primary period of the lease or the useful life of assets, whichever 
is shorter. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

The useful lives have been determined based on managements' judgement, based on technical assessment, in order 
to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The assets residual values, method of depreciation and useful life are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, prospectively at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying 
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its 
estimated recoverable amount. 

2.6 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific 
assets to which it relates. Internally generated intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure is 
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to 
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite 
to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included 
in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised. 

Intangible assets of the Company include computer software. Cost incurred towards purchase of computer 
software are amortized using the straight- line method over a period based on management’s estimate of useful 
lives of such software being 1 to 3 years, or over the license period of the software, whichever is shorter. 

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of 
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and 
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond 
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the 
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In 
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or 
country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such 
properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. 

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates 
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has 
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 



Amagi Media Labs Private Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2.8 Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognised when, or as, control of a promised goods or services transfers to customers, in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring those goods 
or services. To recognise revenues the following five step approach is applied: (i) identify the contract with a 
customer, (ii) identify the performance obligation in the contract, (iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) allocate 
the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (v) recognise revenues when a 
performance obligation is satisfied. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

Revenue from sale of services 

Revenue from distribution and playout services are recognised over the specific period in accordance with the 
terms of the contracts with customers. Certain contracts contain initial /one time set-up fees which is recognised 
over the term of the contract.  

Revenue from service contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, is recognized 
as and when the related services are performed. 

Revenue from Intercompany services recognised as per the terms of arrangements made with Intercompany. 

Revenues from fixed-price contracts are recognized using the “percentage-of-completion” method. Percentage of 
completion is determined based on project costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated project costs 
required to complete the project. The cost expended (or input) method has been used to measure progress towards 
completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. 

If the company does not have a sufficient basis to measure the progress of completion or to estimate the total 
contract revenues and costs, revenue is recognized only to the extent of contract cost incurred for which 
recoverability is probable. 

Unearned revenue included in the current liabilities represents billings in excess of revenues recognized. 

The Company collected GST and other taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic 
benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue. 

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (discounts and incentives), the company estimates 
the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods/services to the 
customer and such discounts and incentives are estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly 
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when 
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The rights of return and 
volume rebates give rise to variable consideration. 

Interest Income (including Unwinding interest on Lease Deposit): Interest income is recognised using the 
effective interest rate method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts 
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest 
rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit 
losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividend Income: Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established. 
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Contract balances 

Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the 
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or 
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract 
assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in 
section 2.14 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement.  

Trade receivables 
A trade receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is 
required before payment of the consideration is due).  

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from the 
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue 
when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the 
customer). 

2.9. Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses 
whether:  

(i) the contract involves the use of identified asset;

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of
lease and;

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

Company as a Lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use 
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes 
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the 
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policy on impairment of non-financial assets. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Impairment of non-
financial assets.  
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Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, 
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise 
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for 
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce 
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting 
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an 
option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and 
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office 
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

2.10 Employee benefits: 

Short term Obligations: 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance 
sheet.  

Compensated absences 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee 
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay 
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats accumulated 
leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement 
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of 
profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in 
the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the 
reporting date. 

Post-employment obligations: 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 
• Defined benefit plans - gratuity, and
• Defined contribution plan such as provident fund.
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Defined benefit plans: Gratuity 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows 
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have term approximating 
the term of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance 
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Such accumulated re-measurement 
balances are never reclassified into the statement of profit and loss subsequently. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.  

Defined contribution plans: Provident fund 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund scheme is the defined contribution plans. The Company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable. The Company recognizes contribution payable to these schemes 
as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. 

2.11 Investment in Subsidiary 

The Company has elected to recognize its investments in subsidiary companies at cost in accordance with the 
option available in Ind AS - 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’, less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost 
represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investments or invested in the subsidiary. The details of such 
investment is given in note 6. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2.7 for policy on impairment of non-financial 
asset. 

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged 
or credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Share Based Payment 

Employee Stock Option Scheme: 

The Stock option plan of the Company is classified as equity settled transaction based on the constructive 
obligation for settlement of option in equity. 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an 
appropriate valuation model. 

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in employees stock option reserves in equity, over 
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The 
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects 
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period 
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is 
recognised in employee benefits expense. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted 
earnings per share. 
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Cash-Settled Employee Stock Options: A share-based payment transaction in which the terms of the 
arrangement provide the company with the choice of whether to settle in cash or by issuing equity instruments, 
the company determine whether it has a present obligation to settle in cash and account for the share-based 
payment transaction accordingly. The company has a present obligation to settle in cash if the choice of settlement 
in equity instruments has no commercial substance or the entity has a past practice or a stated policy of settling in 
cash, or generally settles in cash whenever the counterparty asks for cash settlement. 

Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme: The Company's employees are granted share appreciation rights 
(SAR), settled in cash.  The liability for the share appreciation rights is measured, initially and at the end of each 
reporting period until settled, at the fair value of the SAR by applying an option pricing model, taking into account 
the terms and conditions on which the SAR were granted, and the extent to which the employees have rendered 
services to date. 

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair 
value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, 
measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of 
the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by 
the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately 
through profit or loss. 

2.13 Financial Instruments: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases 
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement  
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
• Debt instruments and equity instruments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
• Equity instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
• Equity instruments and equity instruments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost, if both of the following conditions are met: 

(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.  
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A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met: 
(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and
(ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at 
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, 
impairment losses and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the 
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of 
profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the 
EIR method. 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within 
the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the standalone statement of profit 
and loss.  

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 
trading are classified as at FVTPL. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then 
all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of 
the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of the investments. Equity instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss.  

De-recognition  
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) 
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:  

•The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
•The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure. The Company follows ‘simplified 
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified 
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a 
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 
twelve-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The twelve-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events 
that are possible within twelve months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects 
to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) 
recognized during the year is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is 
reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.  
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the 
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables, and Lease liabilities. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.  Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as 
held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for 
trading are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such 
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses 
are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.  

After initial recognition, gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.  

De-recognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. 
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a re-classification is made only if there is a change in the business 
model for managing those assets. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it 
applies the re-classification prospectively from the re-classification date, which is the first day of the immediately 
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously 
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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2.14 Income taxes: 

 Income tax 

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the 
statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction). Management 
periodically evaluates whether it is probable that the relevant taxation authority would accept an uncertain tax 
treatment that the Company has used or plan to use in its income tax filings, including with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate. The 
Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method 
or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized 
for all taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary differences, except: 

• when the deferred tax liability or asset arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiary and associate, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to 
the extent it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is 
recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying 
transaction).  

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

2.15  Segment reporting 

The Company reports the standalone financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements. In 
accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the Company has disclosed the segment information in the 
consolidated financial statements. 
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2.16  Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of 
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.17  Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and 
loss, net of any reimbursement. 

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

2.18  Contingent Asset/liability 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements. 

Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related 
asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 

2.19  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and in hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.  

2.20 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 
future periods.  

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes: 

• Capital management Note 44
• Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 43

The Company bases its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial 
statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions, if any, about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The judgements, estimates and assumptions 
management has made which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone 
financial statements are as below.  
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Leases 

The Company determines the lease term as non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered 
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company applies judgement and considers 
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the 
option to renew or terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if 
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise 
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company 
uses internal rate of return for the assets which were earlier classified under finance lease and incremental 
borrowing rate (IBR) for Right of use assets at the lease commencement date. 

The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a 
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar 
economic environment.  

The IBR requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect 
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market 
interest rates), when available and makes entity-specific estimates, wherever required. 

Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables 

The measurement of expected credit loss reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and 
the best available forward-looking information. The correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast 
economic conditions and expected credit loss is a significant estimate. The amount of expected credit loss is 
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecasted economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss 
experience and forecast of economic conditions may not be representative of the actual default in the future. 

Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuation. An actuarial valuation involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, expected return, future salary increases and mortality 
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.  

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans 
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of 
such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly 
available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic 
changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 

Share-based payments 

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate 
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires 
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, 
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based payment 
transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of settlement, 
with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used 
at the end of each reporting period. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based 
payment transactions are disclosed in Note 41. 
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the standalone financial statement 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal valuation 
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs 
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of standalone financial instruments. 

2.21 New standards or amendments to the existing standards and other pronouncements 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2023 dated 31 March 2023, to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 01 April 2023. The Company has applied these amendments for the first-time. 

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments have had no impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies or on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s standalone financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards applicable to the Company. 
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment Computers
Furniture and 

fixtures
Office equipment

Leasehold 
improvements

Total Owned 
Asset

Capital work in 
progress

Total

Gross Block
At 01 April 2022 16.73   58.40   0.38   2.24  -  77.75  -   77.75   
Additions 13.17   57.57   8.03   2.72  10.53   92.02  49.35   141.37   
Disposals - (0.28)  -   -   -   (0.28)  -   (0.28)   
At 31 March 2023 29.90   115.69   8.41   4.96  10.53   169.49   49.35   218.84   
Additions 1.70   15.48   4.44   1.36  99.40   122.38   -  122.38  
Disposals -   -   -   -   -   -  -  -

 Assets capitalized from capital work 
in progress -   -   -   -   -   -   

(49.35)  
(49.35)   

At 31 March 2024 31.60   131.17   12.85   6.32  109.93   291.87   -  291.87  

Accumulated Depreciation
At 01 April 2022 10.75   13.19   0.25   1.07  -  25.26  -   25.26   
Charge for the year 4.54   31.57   0.67   0.59  0.17  37.54   -   37.54   
Disposals -   (0.15)   -   -   -   (0.15)   -   (0.15)   
At 31 March 2023 15.29   44.61   0.92   1.66  0.17  62.65   -   62.65   
Charge for the year 6.49   39.91   2.28   0.89  15.59   65.16   -   65.16   
Disposals -   -   -   -   -   -  -   -   
At 31 March 2024 21.78   84.52   3.20   2.55  15.76   127.81   -  127.81  

Net book value
At 31 March 2024 9.82   46.65   9.65   3.77   94.17   164.06   -  164.06  
At 31 March 2023 14.61   71.08   7.49   3.30   10.36   106.84   49.35   156.19   

Capital work in progress ('CWIP') ageing schedule

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years
Total

At 31 March 2024
- Projects in progress   -  -    -  -    -  
- Projects temporarily suspended   -  -    -  -    -  

-    -  -    -  -  -  

At 31 March 2023
- Projects in progress   49.35   -  -    -    49.35 
- Projects temporarily suspended   -  -    -  -    -  

  49.35   -  -    -    49.35 

4. Other intangible assets

Particulars
Computer 

software
Intellectual 

Property
Total

Cost 
At 01 April 2022 5.04   -  5.04  
Additions 0.62   -  0.62  
Disposals -  -  -  
At 31 March 2023 5.66   -  5.66  
Additions (refer note (a) below and note 34) -  41.23   41.23   
Disposals -  -  -  
At 31 March 2024 5.66   41.23   46.89   

Accumulated Amortisation 
At 01 April 2022   2.46 - 2.46
Charge for the year   1.80 - 1.80
Disposals   -  -   - 
At 31 March 2023   4.26 - 4.26
Charge for the year   1.09   0.05   1.14 
Disposals   -  -    -  
At 31 March 2024   5.35   0.05   5.40 

Net book value
At 31 March 2024   0.31   41.18   41.49 
At 31 March 2023   1.40 - 1.40

Particulars
  Amount in CWIP for a period of 

There are no projects which are temporarily suspended. With regard to the projects carried out during the year, there are no projects where completion is overdue or has exceeded 
the cost as compared to its original plan.

(a) On 08 November 2023, one of the Subsidiary of the company entered into agreement with Tellyo OY, Finland for purchase of cloud native live video production business for a purchase 
consideration of Euro 17.65 million (Rs 159.82 million). As part of acquisition, the Intellectual property amounting to Rs. 41.23 million has been transfer to the company from its subsidiary.
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5. Right-of-use assets

Particulars
Furniture and 

Fixtures
Building Total

Cost
At 01 April 2022 5.86  27.20   33.06  
Additions 10.15  252.21   262.36  
At 31 March 2023 16.01  279.41   295.42  
Additions -   -   -   
Deletions -   (10.90)   (10.90)   
At 31 March 2024 16.01  268.51   284.52  

Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2022 4.69  18.51   23.20  
Charge for the year 4.98  31.47   36.45  
Disposals -   -   -   
At 31 March 2023 9.67  49.98   59.65  
Charge for the year 5.07  40.98   46.05  
Disposals -   (3.24)   (3.24)   
At 31 March 2024 14.74  87.72   102.46  

Net book value
At 31 March 2024 1.27  180.79   182.06  
At 31 March 2023 6.34  229.43   235.77  

6. Investments

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024
As at

31 March 2023

Non-Current

Unquoted
Investment in subsidiary
(A) Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries (At Cost)

3.11   3.11  

280.97   8.07   

(B) Equity Component - ESOP and SAR
Amagi Corporation, USA 100.26   100.26   
Amagi Media Pvt Ltd, United Kingdom 78.09   78.09   
Amagi Media Labs Pte Ltd, Singapore -   5.31   

178.35   183.66   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 459.32   191.73   
Aggregrate amount of impairment of investments -   -   

Current

As at
31 March 

2024

As at
31 March 

2023

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Quoted
Investment in mutual funds (measured at fair value through profit and loss)
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Reg Growth 82,14,275  82,14,275  281.80   261.34  
Nippon India Arbitrage Growth 1,14,83,963  1,14,83,963  280.16   260.63  
HDFC Liquid Direct Growth 14,085  29,127  50.05   128.83  
Nippon India Arbitrage Direct Growth 7,30,964  1,08,68,644  19.10   262.36  
Edelweiss Arbitrage Direct Growth - 94,94,537 - 165.68 
ICICI Pru Equity Arbitrage Direct Growth - 45,43,992 - 140.65 
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Direct Growth - 78,27,201 - 262.59 
Tata Arbitrage Fund Direct Growth - 1,94,70,578 - 246.90 
UTI Arbitrage Direct Growth - 1,12,32,773 - 352.29 
Aditya Birla SL Liquid Direct Growth - 7,23,479 - 262.68 
ICICI Pru Liquid Direct Growth - 3,36,623 - 112.16 
SBI Liquid Direct Growth - 51,514 - 181.50 

631.11   2,637.61   

Aggregate book value of quoted investment 631.11   2,637.61   
Aggregate market value of quoted investment 631.11   2,637.61   

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Number of units

 50,000 (31 March 2023 :50000) Ordinary shares of CAD 1.00 (31 March 2023 : CAD 1.00) full paid-up in Amagi Canada Corporation Inc, USA 

 2,582,338 (31 March 2023 : 100) Ordinary shares of GBP 1.00 (31 March 2023 : GBP 1.00) each fully paid-up in Amagi Media Pvt Ltd, United 
Kingdom 

2.89    4,400,000 (31 March 2023 : 4,400,000) Ordinary shares of USD 0.01 (31 March 2023 : USD 0.01) each fully paid-up in Amagi Corporation, 
USA 

2.06   

272.91   0.01  

 40,000 (31 March 2023 : 40,000) Ordinary shares of SGD 1.00 (31 March 2023 : SGD 1.00) each fully paid-up in Amagi Media Labs Pte Ltd, 
Singapore 

2.89  

2.06  

Amount (In million)

Particulars
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7. Other financial assets (Non-current)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Carried at amortised cost
Security deposit 19.18   24.35  

19.18   24.35   
8. Income tax assets

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Advance tax including tax deducted at source 62.14   21.44  
62.14   21.44   

9. Other non-current assets

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Balances with statutory / government authorities 487.10   565.57  
Prepaid expenses 5.17   2.96  

492.27   568.53   

10. Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1,082.61   1,254.58  
1,082.61   1,254.58  

Break-up for security details:
Trade Receivables

1,082.61   1,254.58  
38.31   68.61  

1,120.92   1,323.19  

Impairment Allowance

(38.31)   (68.61)   
1,082.61   1,254.58  

Notes:
(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a credit term of 30-60 days.
(ii) Refer note 34 for trade receivables from related parties.

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Unbilled 
revenue

Not due
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

176.14   261.39   645.08   -   -   -   -   1,082.61   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

- 2.08 23.86   11.88   0.49   -   -   38.31   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

176.14   263.47   668.94   11.88   0.49   -   -   1,120.92   
- (2.08) (23.86)   (11.88)   (0.49)   -   -   (38.31)   

176.14   261.39   645.08   -   -   -   -   1,082.61   

Particulars

Carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables - Credit Impaired

Credit impaired

(iii) No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivables are due from 
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, director or member.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(e) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have
significant increase in credit risk

(f) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

(b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

(c) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

(d) Disputed Trade receivables - considered
good

Less: Allowance for credit impaired

Trade Receivables

(a) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered good
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Unbilled 
revenue

Not due
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

1.27   72.03   1,152.34   24.92   4.02   -   -   1,254.58   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

- 3.36 38.15   23.03   2.84   1.23   -   68.61   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
1.27   75.39   1,190.49   47.95   6.86   1.23   - 1,323.19 

- (3.36)  (38.15)   (23.03)   (2.84)   (1.23)   - (68.61)  
1.27   72.03   1,152.34   24.92   4.02   -   -   1,254.58   

11. Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Balance with banks
- On current accounts 104.68   212.61   
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 2,033.27   6,718.30   

Cash on hand 0.01   0.01   
2,137.96   6,930.92   

12. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non- Current
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months* 3.05   3.05   

3.05   3.05   

Current
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than or equal to 12 months 5,142.01   -   

5,142.01   -   

13. Loans

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 0.39   0.27   
Loans to related parties (refer note 34) -   19.54  

0.39   19.81  
Note:

14. Other financial assets (Current)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit 0.04   0.04  
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 140.35   52.02  
Other receivables from related parties* 416.31   508.00  

556.70   560.06  

* Represents ESOP/SAR cost cross charged to subsidiary companies. Refer note 34 for receivables from related parties.

15. Other current assets

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Advances to suppliers 14.88   10.02  
Balances with statutory authorities 298.76 382.00   
Prepaid expenses 107.89   98.04  
Capital advance -   10.89  
Other assets* -   41.11   

421.53   542.06   

* Represents AWS credit receivable expected to be utilised against subsequent purchases, based on the expected milestone to be achieved.

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

*Bank Guarantees and outstanding balance on Credit Card from bank are secured by lien on fixed deposits of the Company aggregating to Rs 3.05 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 3.05 million).

As at 31 March 2023

(b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

(c) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

(d) Disputed Trade receivables - considered
good

(e) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have
significant increase in credit risk

(f) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(a) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good

Less: Allowance for credit impaired

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, Key Management Personnel and the Related Parties (as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, other than as disclosed above
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16. Share capital

A) Equity Share Capital

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

6.60   6.60  
6.60   6.60  

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
4.75   4.75  
4.75   4.75   

Ordinary equity shares of Rs 5 each

Number Amount Number Amount
9,48,895   4.75   10,25,428  5.13  

  -  -  -   -   
Buy-back during the year (Refer Note (i) below)   -  -  (76,533)  (0.38)   

  9,48,895   4.75   9,48,895   4.75 

(b) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

 Number % holding  Number % holding

Equity shares of Rs 5 each , fully paid

Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu 70,200   7.40% 70,200   7.40%

Baskar Subramanian 67,979   7.16% 67,979   7.16%

Srividhya Srinivasan 67,980   7.16% 67,980   7.16%

Vida Trustees Pvt Ltd trustees of Iris Trust on behalf of Kalpa Partners 1,88,810   19.90% 1,88,810   19.90%

Norwest Venture Partners X – Mauritius 1,16,838   12.31% 1,16,838   12.31%

Accel India VI (Mauritius) Limited 1,16,838   12.31% 1,16,838   12.31%

PI Opportunities Fund - 1 Scheme II 81,428   8.58% 81,428   8.58%

PI Opportunities Fund - II 51,652   5.44% 51,652   5.44%

Avataar Holdings 83,454   8.79% 83,454   8.79%

General Atlantic Singapore AML Pte. Ltd 84,280   8.88% 84,280   8.88%

 (c) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, fully paid
Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu -  70,200  7.40% -   
Baskar Subramanian -  67,979  7.16% -   
Srividhya Srinivasan -  67,980  7.16% -   

-   2,06,159   21.72% -   

Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, fully paid
Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu -  70,200  7.40% -   
Baskar Subramanian (54,345)  67,979  7.16% (44.43%)
Srividhya Srinivasan (54,344)  67,980  7.16% (44.43%)

(1,08,689)  2,06,159   21.72% (34.52%)

(a) Change due to buy-back of equity shares and share-transfer.

(d) Terms / Rights attached to equity shares

(e) Other terms and conditions

(ii) Refer note 41 for outstanding employee stock options

 No. of shares at the beginning 
of the year 

 Changes 
during the 

Particulars

(i) During the previous year, the shareholders approved a resolution to buy back 76,533 ordinary shares having a face value of Rs 5 each fully paid-up at a buy-back
price of Rs, 11,993.63 each amounting to Rs 917.91 million. The Company paid buy-back tax of Rs. 213.75 Million. The Company created Capital Redemption
Reserve (CRR) equal to the nominal value of the shares bought-back of Rs. 0.38 million as an appropriation from securities premium reserve.

 As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Authorised share capital

Ordinary equity shares - 1,320,000(31 March 2023: 1,320,000) equity shares of Rs.5 each

(i) The equity shares held by promoters shall not be entitled to transfer without the consent of the investors, expect upto permitted liquidity ( as defined as per
Shareholder agreement dated 14 October 2022) and shall be permitted for sale or transfer to a third party not being a competitor upto 4 years from 15 September
2021. Also provided that the non-promotors shareholders shall have a right of first offer. 

The equity shareholders are entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 % Holding Name of the shareholder  % change during the 
year 

1,22,324   
1,22,324   
3,14,848   

70,200   

 As at 31 March 2024

2,06,159   

 No. of 
shares at the 

 % Holding 

As at 31 March 2023

70,200   

 % change during the 
year 

 No. of shares at the beginning 
of the year 

 Changes 
during the 

Name of the shareholder

67,980   
67,979   

 No. of 
shares at the 

As at 31 March 2023

Ordinary equity shares - 9,48,895 (31 March 2023: 9,48,895) equity shares of Rs.5 each

Issued during the year

 As at 31 March 2024

(a)  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year :

Name of the shareholder

At the commencement of the year

At the end of the year
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B) Instrument entirely in the nature of equity

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2024 
As at

31 March 2023

420.00   420.00   

50.00   50.00   

470.00   470.00   

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
7,001.90   7,001.90   

1,746.24   1,746.24   
8,748.14   8,748.14   

Number Amount Number Amount

As the beginning of the year   41,67,773 7,001.90     36,17,500 5,289.70   
Conversion of OCPS to CCPS (refer note (i) below)   -  -    2,14,419 1,678.56   
Issue of shares (refer note (ii) below)   -  -    3,35,854 33.64  

  41,67,773   7,001.90   41,67,773   7,001.90 

As the beginning of the year   2,29,637   1,746.24   4,44,056 3,424.80   
Conversion of OCPS to CCPS (refer note (i) below)   -  -    (2,14,419) (1,678.56)   

  2,29,637   1,746.24   2,29,637   1,746.24 

(b) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCPS

* At the EGM held on 11 October 2022, the shareholders has approved a resolution to increase the authorised share capital of preference shares from Rs. 408.70
million to Rs. 470.00 million.

Particulars

The company will issue equity share pursuant to the conversion of CCPS shall be that determined as per the shareholder agreement dated 14 October 2022 i.e. for
Type 1 CCPS, Type 2 CCPS, Series D1 CCPS and Series A1 Bonus CCPS 2:1 (2 equity shares for 1 CCPS); Type 3 CCPS and Series D2 CCPS 1.944444:1
(1.944444 equity shares for 1 OCPS); Type 4 CCPS 1.014589:1 (1.014589 equity shares for 1 CCPS); Series F 1:1 (1 equity share for 1 CCPS); Series A2 Bonus
CCPS, Series B1 Bonus CCPS, Series C1 Bonus CCPS, Series C Bonus 1 CCPS and Series D Bonus 1 CCPS 0.49859:1 (0.49858 equity shares for 1 CCPS); and
Series B2 Bonus CCPS, Series B Bonus CCPS. Series C2 Bonus CCPS, Series C Bonus 2 CCPS and Series D Bonus 2 CCPS 0.35212:1 (0.35212 equity shares for 1
CCPS).

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) - 229,637 (31 March 2023: 229,637) of Rs. 100 each

(a)  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year :

 As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

(i) During the previous year, 214,419 OCPS were converted into CCPS at the request of the shareholders, such conversion was taken on record by the board of

directors of the Company in their meeting held on 11 October 2022.

(ii) During the previous year, the Company issued 3,35,854 Series F CCPS to new shareholders at consideration of Rs 19,505.54 per share. Accordingly, the

Company has recorded Rs 100 per share as preference share capital and the balance amount of Rs 19,405.54 per share is recorded as Securities Premium on issue of

shares under ' Reserves and Surplus'. Consequent to the above, the shareholders of the Company have entered in a restated Shareholders Agreement (SHA) on 14

October 2022 which defines the rights and restrictions of each shareholder. The new SHA supersedes the earlier SHA which was entered into by the shareholders on

25 August 2021, 13 December 2016 and 10 March 2022.

The CCPS are issued at a preferential dividend rate of 0.0001% (Zero point Zero Zero Zero One percent) per annum. The CCPS Preferential Dividend is cumulative
(non-cumulative in case of Bonus preference shares issued) and shall accrue from year to year and shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior
years). Such dividend shall be payable for the CCPS in preference to any of the Equity Shares of the Company. The holders of the CCPS shall be entitled to pro-rata
participate in any dividend declaration on the Equity Shares on a Fully Diluted Basis. 

Each holder of CCPS are entitled to convert the CCPS into equity shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCPS or subject to the compliance of
applicable laws each CCPS automatically be converted into equity share, in the manner provided in the shareholder agreement dated 14 October 2022, upon the
earlier of 
(i) one day prior to the expiry of 19 years and 11 months (20 years in case Series A1 Bonus CCPS,Series B1 Bonus CCPS, Series B Bonus CCPS, Series C Bonus 1
CCPS and Series D CCPS Bonus 1) of  from the allotment or 
(ii) At the latest time permitted under Law, when considering the listing of the Equity Shares pursuant to an IPO.

The assets available for distribution pursuant to a Liquidation Event or Deemed Liquidation shall be distributed in the manner provided in the shareholder agreement

dated 14 October 2022 . The Company will make the payments of the Preference Amounts to the holders of these CCPS in the manner provided in the shareholder

agreement and to do all such things as may be reasonably necessary.

CCPS of Rs 100 each (31 March 2023: Rs 100 each)

OCPS of Rs 100 each (31 March 2023: Rs 100 each)

Participatory Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) - 4,167,773 (31 March
2023: 4.167,773) of Rs. 100 each)

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) - 5,00,000 (31 March 2023: 5,00,000) of Rs. 100 each

Authorised share capital
Participatory Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) - 42,00,000 (31 March
2023: 42,00,000) of Rs. 100 each)
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(c) Terms of conversion/redemption of OCPS

(d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

 Number % holding  Number % holding

CCPS of Rs 100 each (31 March 2023: Rs 100 each)
Avataar Holdings 4,30,869   10.34% 4,30,869   10.34%
Norwest Venture Partners X – Mauritius 7,72,226   18.53% 7,72,226   18.53%
PI Opportunities Fund - II 6,84,861   16.43% 6,84,861   16.43%
PI Opportunities Fund - 1 Scheme II 2,43,847   5.85% 2,43,847   5.85%
PI Opportunities Fund - I 3,14,361   7.54% 3,14,361   7.54%
Accel India VI (Mauritius) Limited 6,03,214   14.47% 6,03,214   14.47%
Accel Growth VI Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd 2,41,446   5.79% 2,41,446   5.79%
General Atlantic Singapore AML Pte. Ltd 3,63,948   8.73% 3,63,948   8.73%

OCPS of Rs 100 each (31 March 2023: Rs 100 each)
PI Opportunities Fund - II 2,29,637   100.00% 2,29,637   100.00%

(f) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:

CCPS of Rs. 100 each, fully paid
Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu 98,859   -  98,859  2.25% -   
Baskar Subramanian 98,859   -  98,859  2.25% -   
Srividhya Srinivasan 98,859   -  98,859  2.25% -   

-   2,96,577   6.75% -   

CCPS of Rs. 100 each, fully paid
Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu 98,859   -  98,859  2.25% -   
Baskar Subramanian 98,859   -  98,859  2.25% -   
Srividhya Srinivasan 98,859   -  98,859  2.25% -   

-   2,96,577   6.75% -   

17. Other equity

 As at 
31 March 2024 

As at
31 March 2023

Securities premium 14,128.78   14,128.78   
Employee stock options outstanding 1,806.40   968.57   
Capital redemption reserve 0.38   0.38  
Fair value of equity instrument 2,370.12   2,290.12   
Retained earnings (22,296.72)  (20,124.90)   

(3,991.04)  (2,737.05)   

Particulars

Name of the shareholder

Name of the shareholder  % change during the 
year 

2,96,577   

 As at 31 March 2024

(e) Shares issued for consideration other than cash: 
At the EGM held on 28 February 2022, the shareholders approved issue of 2,557,295 cumulative compulsorily convertible preference bonus shares of Rs 100 each to
all class of equity and preference shareholders.

As at 31 March 2023
 No. of shares at the beginning 

of the year 
 Changes 

during the 

 No. of 
shares at the 

 % Holding 

 % Holding 

Name of the shareholder

 No. of 
shares at the 

2,96,577   

 % change during the 
year 

The OCPS are issued at a preferential dividend rate of 0.0001% (Zero point Zero Zero Zero One percent) per annum. The OCPS Preferential Dividend is cumulative
in case of PIOF OCPS and non-cumulative in case of New PI Preference shares and shall accrue from year to year and shall be paid in full (together with dividends
accrued from prior years). Such dividend shall be payable for the OCPS in preference to any of the Equity Shares of the Company. The holders of the OCPS shall be
entitled to pro-rata participate in any dividend declaration on the Equity Shares on a Fully Diluted Basis. 

Each holder of OCPS are entitled to convert the OCPS into equity shares at any time at the option of the holder of the OCPS or subject to the compliance of
applicable laws each OCPS automatically be converted into equity share, in the manner provided in the shareholder agreement dated 14 October 2022, upon the
earlier of 
(i) one day prior to the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the allotment or
(ii) At the latest time permitted under Law, when considering the listing of the Equity Shares pursuant to an IPO.

The assets available for distribution pursuant to a Liquidation Event or Deemed Liquidation shall be distributed in the manner provided in the shareholder agreement
dated 14 October 2022. The Company will make the payments of the Preference Amounts to the holders of these OCPS in the manner provided in the shareholder
agreement and to do all such things as may be reasonably necessary.

The company will issue equity share pursuant to the conversion of OCPS shall be that determined as per the shareholder agreement dated 14 October 2022 i.e. for
PIOF OCPS 2:1 (2 equity shares for 1 OCPS) and for New PI Preference Shares 1.944444:1 (1.944444 equity shares for 1 OCPS). Additionally, at the EGM held on

4 March 2022, the shareholders approved change in terms of Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) wherein the OCPS holders shall in addition to being

entitled to convert the OCPS into ordinary equity shares, shall also have the option to convert the whole or part of their OCPS into Series D1 and D2 Cumulative

Compulsorily Convertible Preference (CCPS).

 As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

 No. of shares at the beginning 
of the year 

 Changes 
during the 
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As at 
31 March 2024

 As at
31 March 2023 

Securities premium
At the beginning of the year 14,128.78   8,743.03   
Add: Premium on issue of CCPS -  6,517.41   
Less : Utilised for buy-back of shares -  (917.53)   
Less : Utilised for tax on buy-back of shares -  (213.75)   
Less: Transfer to CRR -  (0.38)   
At the end of the year 14,128.78   14,128.78   

Employee stock options outstanding 
At the beginning of the year 968.57   -   
Add: Compensation cost related to employee share based payment (including cross charge to subsidiaries) 837.83   968.57   
At the end of the year 1,806.40   968.57   

Capital redemption reserve
At the beginning of the year 0.38   -   
Add: Transfer from retained earnings -   0.38   
At the end of the year 0.38   0.38  

Fair value of equity instrument
At the beginning of the year 2,290.12   2,210.12   
Add: Cost for the year (refer note 32 and note 46) 80.00   80.00   
At the end of the year 2,370.12   2,290.12   

Retained earnings

At the beginning of the year (20,124.90)  (16,655.14)   
Loss for the year (2,138.32)  (3,473.39)   
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (33.51)   3.63  

At the end of the year (22,296.72)  (20,124.90)   

Total reserves and surplus (3,991.04)  (2,737.05)   

Nature and purpose of other equity:

a) Securities premium

b) Employee stock options outstanding 
Employee stock option outstanding reserve is used to record the fair value of equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees.

c) Capital redemption reserve 

d) Fair value of equity instrument

e) Retained earnings 

18. Lease liabilities

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non-current (carried at amortised cost) (A)
Lease liability 170.09   199.52   

170.09   199.52   

Current (carried at amortised cost) (B)
Lease liability 23.55   31.38   

23.55   31.38   

Total liabilities (A+B) 193.64   230.90   

Particulars

Particulars

Securities premium account has been created consequent to issue of shares at premium. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The fair value of the additional equity shares issuable to the shareholder is accounted through these reserves. Upon the completion of contingencies, the fair value
impact represents the value towards capital and would not be reclassified.

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The lease assets primarily pertains to premises and furniture & fixtures rented for office purposes and the tenure of the leases varies from 1 to 7 years.

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal
to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of
the Companies Act, 2013.
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Particulars
As at 

31 March 2024
As at

31 March 2023

230.90   10.09   

(7.65)   242.13   
Interest   27.64 15.78  

(57.25)   (37.10)   
Balance at end of the year 193.64   230.90   

Particulars
For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Refer note 31) 46.05     36.45 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer note 30) 27.64   15.78  
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) (Refer note 32) 7.03   7.92  
Total 80.72   60.15   

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2024
As at

31 March 2023
  48.08 59.63  

One to five years   202.21 256.87   
More than 5 years   23.22 23.22  
Total 273.51   339.72   

19. Other financial liabilities (Non-Current)

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Carried at fair value
Stock Appreciation Rights (Note 41) 2,024.52   55.48  
Employee stock compensation liability (Note 41) 1,877.37   -   

Carried at amortised cost
Deposit from customers -   0.24  

3,901.89   55.72   

20. Provisions  (Non-Current)

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 35) 109.65   52.66  

109.65   52.66  

21. Other Non-current liabilities

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unearned revenue (Refer note (a) below) 1.93   531.03   

1.93   531.03   

22. Trade payables

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Carried at amortised cost
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 37) 25.10   20.00   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,552.10   1,579.89   

1,577.20   1,599.89   

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

(a) Unearned revenue includes revenue billed in advance and also includes certain one-time initial set-up fees which is recognised over the period of the contract.
Also refer note 34 for unearned revenue from related parties. 

Particulars

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities at undiscounted value as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

Payment of lease liabilities

Less than one year

a) The following is the lease liabilities movement for year ended:

Balance at beginning of the year

Addition/(Disposals) during the year

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:

The Company has total cash outflow of Rs 57.25 millions (March 31, 2023: Rs.37.10 millions)
The effective interest rate/Incremental borrowing rate is 13% for the leases. The Company has no lease contracts with variable payments.
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a) There are no non-current trade payable as on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nil).
b) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled up to 60 days.
c) For explanation of Company's credit risk management process, refer to Note 43.
d) Refer note 34 for trade payables to related parties.

Trade payables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

Particulars
(a) MSME -  22.95  2.15   -   -   -   25.10   
(b) Disputed dues - MSME -  - -  -   -   -   -   

-   22.95   2.15   -   -   -   25.10   

Particulars
(a) Others 401.11   431.94   719.05   -   -   -   1,552.10   
(b) Disputed dues - others -   -   -  -   -   -   -   

401.11   431.94   719.05   -   -   -   1,552.10   

Total Trade Payables 401.11   454.89   721.20   -   -   -   1,577.20   

As at 31 March 2023
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

Particulars
(a) MSME - 2.08  17.92   -   -   -   20.00   
(b) Disputed dues - MSME - - -   -   -   -   -   

-   2.08   17.92   -   -   -   20.00   

Particulars
(a) Others 352.75   463.12   764.02   -   -   -   1,579.89   
(b) Disputed dues - others -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

352.75   463.12   764.02   -   -   -   1,579.89   

Total Trade Payables 352.75   465.20   781.94   -   -   -   1,599.89   

23. Other financial liabilities

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Carried at fair value
Stock appreciation rights (Note 41)** - 1,802.01 
Employee stock compensation liability (Note 41)** - 1,872.38 

Carried at amortised cost
Payable to employees 207.12   198.03   
Statutory dues 107.66   130.74   
Capital creditors 1.03   1.92   
Deposit from customers 19.33   24.96   

335.14   4,030.04   

24. Provisions (Current)

As at 
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 35) 8.35   9.21  
Compensated absences 85.70   42.73  

94.05   51.94   

25. Other current liabilities

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2024
As at

31 March 2023

Advance from customers -   0.59   
Unearned revenue (Refer note 34) 396.52   578.89   
Other liabilities* 24.02   -   

420.54   579.48   

* Represents AWS credit received based on the expected milestone achieved, utilised against current purchases, recognized over the contract period.

Particulars

** reclass to other non current financial liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2024 based on management decision beyond the reporting cycle of 12 months.

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Outstanding for following periods from due date
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26. Revenue from operations

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Sale of services 4,458.99  3,154.23  
4,458.99  3,154.23  

Detail of services rendered For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Distribution and playout services 4,458.99  3,154.23  
4,458.99  3,154.23  

26.1 Details of disaggregation of revenue

26.2 Contract balances

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2024 
 As at

31 March 2023 

(a) Contract assets
Trade receivables  1,082.61  1,254.58 

(b) Contract liabilities
Advance from customers  -  0.59 
Unearned Income  398.45  1,109.92 

26.3 Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars
 For the year ended

31 March 2024 
 For the year ended

31 March 2023 

 Services transferred at a point of time -  -  
 Services transferred over a period of time 4,458.99  3,154.23  
Revenue from contract with customers 4,458.99  3,154.23  

26.4 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Particulars
 For the year ended

31 March 2024 
 For the year ended

31 March 2023 

Revenue as per contracted price 4,496.46  3,256.64  
Adjustments (37.47)  (102.41)  
Revenue from contract with customers 4,458.99  3,154.23  

26.5 Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations:

(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting
period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115,
the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts that have original expected duration of one year or
lesser.

The Company derives its major revenue from sale of thunderstorm, cloudport and other related services, which is a single line of business.
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27. Other income

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Interest income
- Bank deposits 501.05  177.08  
- Income tax refund -  2.73  

Unwinding Income on security deposit 2.38  1.77  
Other Non-operating income:

Foreign exchange gain (net) -  90.23  
Fair value gain on investment measured at fair value through profit and loss 41.49  121.80  
Gain on sale of investment measured at  fair value through profit and loss 71.47  54.19  
Unwinding income on deposits from customers 1.55  2.63  

Miscellaneous income 0.74  0.04  
618.68  450.47  

28A. Purchase of traded goods

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Purchase of traded goods -  0.35  
-  0.35  

28B. (Increase)/ decrease in inventories

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Traded goods (0.35)  0.60  

Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods -  0.95  

(0.35)  (0.35)  

Details of inventory

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023
Traded goods
Router -  0.60  
Fiber Patch cable -  0.35  

-  0.95  

29. Employee benefits expense

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Salaries and wages 2,371.41  1,813.94  
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 71.21  51.05  

4.99  374.19  
512.21  574.50  

81.64  477.38  
Gratuity (Refer note 35) 23.61  21.25  
Staff welfare expenses 64.13  68.33  

3,129.20  3,380.64  

Employee stock compensation expense - Cash Settled (Refer note (a) below)

Stock appreciation rights (SARs) (Refer note 41)
Employee stock compensation expense  - Equity Settled (Refer note 41)

(a) Includes cost of cancellation of certain employee stock option and additional expenses due to change in classification of employee stock options. Refer note
41 for details.
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30. Finance costs

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Bank charges 1.95  1.80  
Interest on lease liability 27.64  15.78  
Interest on deposits from customers 1.73  2.67  

31.32  20.25  

31. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 65.16  37.54  
Amortisation on intangible assets 1.14  1.80  
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 46.05  36.45  

112.35  75.79  

32. Other expenses

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Rent (Refer note 18) 7.03  7.92  
Legal and professional charges 324.55  329.59  
Payment to auditors (Refer note 32A) 7.80  7.80  
Marketing and sales promotion 67.07  59.58  
Rates and taxes 2.41  25.77  
Travel and conveyance 113.44  99.07  
Bad Debts written off 10.19  16.96  
(Reversal)/ Allowance for expected credit losses (30.30)  (1.27)  
Provision for Inventory -  0.95  
Communication costs 2,615.03  2,382.01  
Membership and subscription 371.57  233.69  
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and equipment 0.51  0.52  
- Building 0.01  0.04  
- Others 24.17  17.64  

Power and fuel 9.94  7.85  
Recruitment charges 16.26  64.28  
Printing and stationery 0.71  0.49  
Foreign exchange loss, (net) 7.93  -  
Support service Cost 302.77  247.23  
Fair value of financial instruments (Refer note 46) 80.00  80.00  
Miscellaneous expenses 12.38  21.29  

3,943.47  3,601.41  

32A. Payment to auditors (exclusive of GST)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2024 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

As auditor
Statutory audit 6.00  6.00  
Tax audit 0.70  0.70  
Other services 0.80  0.80  
Reimbursement of expenses 0.30  0.30  

7.80  7.80  
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33. Earnings/(Loss)  per share (EPS)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2024 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 5 each 9,48,895   9,51,201  
Weighted average number of CCPS and OCPS of Rs. 100 each 43,97,410  42,17,755  
Weighted average number of vested options with no substantive consideration 92,761   40,563  
Weighted average number of shares in calculating basic EPS and diluted EPS* 54,39,066  52,09,519  

Net loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (2,138.32)   (3,473.39)   

Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (Rs) (393.14)  (666.74)   

34. A. Names of related parties and related party relationship

(a) Key management personnel
  Arunachalam Srinivasan Karapattu - Director
  Baskar Subramanian - Managing Director
  Srividhya Srinivasan - Whole time Director
  Nishant Kanuru Rao - Nominee Director  (w.e.f September 15, 2021)
  Shekhar Kirani Hanumanthasetty - Nominee Director (w.e.f  15 September 2021)
  Atul Gupta - Nominee Director (upto November 03, 2023)
  Shantanu Rastogi - Nominee Director (w.e.f  10 November 2022)
  Sandesh Kaveripatnam - Nominee Director (w.e.f  15 January 2024)
  Vijay NP - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f  09 Jan 2023)
  Deepesh Maheshwari - Company Secretary (upto 27 Jan 2023)
  Kusum Gore - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 27 September 2023)

(b) Wholly owned subsidiary companies
  Amagi Corporation, USA
  Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore
  Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom
  Amagi Canada Corporation Inc., USA
  Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia (w.e.f  05 December 2022) *
  Amagi Media LLC, USA (w.e.f  03 November 2022)**
  Amagi Media UK Pvt Limited (w.e.f  05 October 2023)*

* Wholly owned subsidiary of Amagi Media Pvt Limited, UK.
** Wholly owned subsidiary of Amagi Corporation, USA

(c) Entities controlled by Director(s)
  Kickstart Foundation

B. The following is the summary of significant transactions with related parties by the Company

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2024 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023

Sale of Services
Amagi Corporation, USA   2,786.00   1,989.53 

Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   56.21   118.59 
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom   840.86   227.79 

  3,683.07   2,335.91 

Support service cost
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   -    206.13 
Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia 302.64     41.09 

  302.64   247.22 

ESOP/SAR cost cross charged to related parties
Amagi Corporation, USA   264.67   388.91 
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom   41.13   75.84 
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   23.62   43.25 
Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia   80.02   - 
Amagi Canada Corporation Inc, Canada 1.57     - 
Amagi Media LLC, USA   -  - 

  411.01   508.00 

* The effects of employee stock options and potential equity shares are anti-dilutive, hence, the same has been ignored for calculating dilutive loss per share.
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Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Amagi Corporation, USA   77.31   36.13 
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   1.77   8.39 
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom   7.86   19.17 
Amagi Canada Corporation Inc., USA   -    2.33 

  86.94   66.02 

Expense reimbursed to related parties
Amagi Corporation, USA   720.52   521.90 
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   25.00   3.86 
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom   22.71   38.45 

  768.23   564.21 

Rent Expenses
Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia   4.44   2.48 

Donation (Miscellaneous expenses)
Kickstart Foundation -  5.21  

Purchase of intangible asset
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom 41.23   -   

Managerial remuneration
Salaries, wages and bonus

Baskar Subramanian   15.12   15.10 
Srividhya Srinivasan   12.60   12.60 
Deepesh Maheshwari   -    1.07 
Vijay N P**   24.10   10.15 
Kusum Gore   1.30   - 

  53.12   38.92 

Contribution to provident and other funds
Baskar Subramanian   -    0.02 
Srividhya Srinivasan   0.53   0.53 
Deepesh Maheshwari   -    0.03 
Vijay N P**   0.75   0.17 
Kusum Gore 0.01   -   

  1.29   0.75 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
Baskar Subramanian   0.44   0.39 
Srividhya Srinivasan   0.37   0.53 
Vijay N P**   0.30   0.04 

  1.11   0.96 

C. Balances receivable from or payable to related parties are as follows:

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2024 
 As at 

31 March 2023 

Trade Payables - entity where control exists
Amagi Corporation, USA   494.81   623.61 
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom   52.91   26.90 
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   -    137.27 
Amagi Canada Corporation Inc., USA   -    24.25 
Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia   129.12   18.91 
Amagi Media UK Private Limited   41.23   -  

718.07   830.94  

Trade Receivables - entity where control exists
Amagi Corporation, USA 919.80   717.51  
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom 62.08   216.16  
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore -  92.18  

  981.89   1,025.85 

** Categorized as KMP as per the requirements under Ind AS. He has not been appointed as a CFO pursuant to Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013.

*The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include:
a) the provisions made for gratuity and compensated absences, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
b) Stock options and other financial instruments granted to some of its KMP as detailed in note 41 and 46.
c) Variable components of salary of Rs 10 million (31 March 2023: Rs 10 million) accrued on best estimate basis.
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Other financial assets - entity where control exists
Amagi Corporation, USA   264.67 388.91  
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom   41.13 75.84  
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore   28.92 43.25  
Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia   80.02 -   
Amagi Canada Corporation Inc, Canada 1.57   -   

  416.31   508.00 

Loans
Amagi Eastern Europe d.o.o, Croatia   -    19.54 

 Unearned Revenue 
Amagi Corporation, USA -   164.31   
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom -   168.43   
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore -   0.94   

-  333.68  

Also refer note 6 for investment details

 Unbilled Revenue 
Amagi Corporation, USA 12.87   -   
Amagi Media Pvt Limited, United Kingdom 148.69   -   
Amagi Media Labs Pte Limited, Singapore 14.58   -   

176.14   -   

Other financial liabilities (Payable to employees)
Baskar Subramanian   23.84   -  

Defined contribution plan

Defined benefit plan

Interest risk

Liquidity risk

Salary escalation risk

Demographic risk

Regulatory risk

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2024 
 As at 

31 March 2023 

Change in defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 61.86   47.15  

Current service cost 19.19   18.09  
Past service cost -  -   
Interest cost 4.42   3.16  
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 23.61   21.25  

Benefits paid (0.98)  (2.91)   

Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 11.21   -   
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 23.26   (14.66)   
Experience adjustments (0.96)  11.03  
Total amount recognised in OCI 33.51   (3.63)   

Closing defined benefit obligation 118.00   61.86  

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Under this plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity
on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The plan is not funded by the Company. The following tables summarize the
components of net benefit expense recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the standalone balance
sheet for the respective plans.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: bond yield risk and salary risk.

The plan exposes the company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate
cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.

This is the risk that the company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of
enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities.

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in
future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of
actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions made.

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to
time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts.

Reconciliation of the projected benefit obligation

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligation other than to make the specified contribution. The contribution is charged to the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as a expense towards contribution to provident fund for the year aggregated to Rs. 71.21 millions (31 March
2023 Rs  51.05 millions).

35. Employee benefits: Post-employment benefit plans
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Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2024 
 As at 

31 March 2023 

Fair value of plan assets   -  -  

Present value of defined benefit obligation   118.00   61.86 

Unrecognised past service cost   -  -  

118.00   61.86   

Classified as: - 
Non-current 109.65   52.66   
Current 8.35   9.20   

118.00   61.86  

Gratuity cost for the year

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2024 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

Current service cost 19.19   18.09  
Past service cost -  -   
Interest on defined benefit obligation 4.42   3.16  
Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss 23.61   21.25  

Actuarial (gain) / loss 33.51   (3.63)   
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in other comprehensive income / (loss) 33.51   (3.63)   

Principal actuarial assumptions
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2024 
 As at 

31 March 2023 

Discount factor 7.20% 7.25%
Expected rate of salary increase 10.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate

  Upto 25 years 12.00% 25.00%
  26-35 years 12.00% 20.00%
  Above 35 years 12.00% 15.00%

Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality rate  100% of IALM (2012-14) 100% of IALM (2012-14)

Note:

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Particulars

Sensitivity level 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase

Discount rate 10.72   (9.32)  3.67   (3.31)   
Salary Growth Rate (9.18)  10.32  (3.37)  3.68  
Attrition Rate 22.52   (12.73)  1.97   (2.70)   
Mortality Rate 0.03   (0.04)  (0.00)  0.01  

The following represents expected cash flow profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2024 
 As at

31 March 2023 

Within the next 12 months 8.35   8.95  
Between 2 and 5 years 45.13   33.76  
Between 6 and 10 years 62.19   29.55  
More than 10 years 137.28   28.57  
Total expected cash flow profile (payments) 252.95   100.83  

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account inflations, seniority, promotional and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand in the employment market.
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality rates. The valuation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the mortality
assumptions.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7 years (31 March, 2023: 5 years).

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes
in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the year) has been applied as when calculating
the defined benefit liability recognised in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023
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36. Deferred tax assets

37. Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2024 
 As at

31 March 2023 

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 23.24   18.32   
- Interest due on the above 1.86   1.68   

25.10   20.00   

-   -   

-   -   

0.18   0.51   

1.86   1.68   

38. Segment Reporting

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2024 
 As at

31 March 2023 
a) Bank guarantee (Issued in the name of President of India towards customs for import guarantee) 0.72   0.72  

40. For the year under review, the provisions related to CSR were applicable to the Company as the net worth of the Company exceeded the prescribed threshold.
Since the Company incurred average net losses during the three immediately preceding financial years, the Company was not obligated to make any CSR
contribution as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

39. Contingent liabilities and commitments

b) There are contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for as at 31 March 2024 Rs Nil (31 March 2023: Rs 21.10
million)

c) Cumulative fixed dividend payable to CCPS holders amounted to Rs 1259.26 (full amount) (31 March 2023: Rs 819.26 (full amount))

The Company prepares these financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" the
Company has disclosed the segment information in consolidated financial statements.

d)During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company received a draft assessment order under section 92CA(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 dated 30 October
2023 proposing adjustments to the international intercompany transactions entered by the Company to the tune of Rs 318.33 million. The Company had filed an
appeal against the draft assessment order before the “Dispute Resolution Panel” on 11 January 2024. The management, basis expert advice, believes that the liability
on account of adjustment on the Company would not arise on account of technical merits of the case.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
period) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year; and  

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the micro and small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to
such enterprises as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 have been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the
Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be
material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has reviewed its deferred tax assets as at 31 March 2024. The Company has unabsorbed depreciation losses, impact of difference between tax
depreciation and depreciation charged for financial reporting and other temporary differences which give rise to deferred tax asset. However in the absence of
reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized,
no deferred tax assets (net) as at 31 March 2024 has been recognised.
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41 a) Employee stock option plans

Plan SOP - 2009 SOP - 2015 (Phase I) SOP - 2015 (Phase II) SOP - 2017 (Phase I) SOP - 2017 (Phase II) SOP - 2022 (Phase I) SOP - 2022 (Phase II) SOP - 2022 (Phase III)
SOP - 2023 (New Hire 

Grant)
SOP - 2023 

(Performance Grant)
Grant date 
Vesting period (graded vesting) 3-4 years 4 years 2-4 years 2-4 years 2-4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
Date of approval of Scheme 30 December 2009 4 September 2015 4 September 2015 18 July 2017 (ii) 18 July 2017 (ii) 30 May 2022 13 March 2023 15 June 2023 16 January 2024 16 January 2024
Exercise period 12 years (i) 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Intrinsic value* Note (iii) Rs 230.89** Rs 326.17** Rs 326.17** Rs 326.17** Nil Nil Nil Nil NA***
Fair Value of option on date on grant 31 March 2024 NA NA NA NA NA Rs 12,229 Rs 16,586 Rs 16,586 Rs 11,559 - Rs 11,643 NA***
Fair Value of option on date on grant 31 March 2023 NA NA NA NA NA Rs 12,229 Rs 16,576   -  -  NA***
Dividend yield (%) - 31 March 2024 NA NA NA NA NA 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% NA***
Dividend yield (%) - 31 March 2023 NA NA NA NA NA 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% NA***
Remaining contractual life  (years) - 31 March 2024 NA NA NA NA NA 4.56 - 6.25 5.08 - 5.98 5.08 - 5.98 5.08 - 5.98 NA***
Remaining contractual life  (years) - 31 March 2023 NA NA NA NA NA 4.56 - 6.25 4.56 - 6.25 4.56 - 6.25 NA NA***
Risk-free interest rate (%) 31 March 2024 NA NA NA NA NA 7.14% - 7.55% 7.14% - 7.55% 7.14% - 7.55% 7.14% - 7.55% NA***
Risk-free interest rate (%) 31 March 2023 NA NA NA NA NA 6.29% - 7.55% 6.29% - 7.55% NA NA NA***
Volatility (%) 31 March 2024 NA NA NA NA NA 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% NA***
Volatility (%) 31 March 2023 NA NA NA NA NA 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% NA***
Weighted average exercise price NA***

At 31 March 2024 Rs 5.00** Rs 542.43** Rs 772.96** Rs 772.96** Rs 1,099.13** Rs 5.00 Rs 5.00 Rs 5.00 Rs. 15,604 NA***
At 31 March 2023 Rs 5.00** Rs 542.43** Rs 772.96** Rs 772.96** Rs 1,099.13** Rs 5.00 Rs 5.00 Rs 5.00 Rs. 15,604 NA***

* In accordance with Ind AS 101, the Company has decided not to apply Ind AS 102 Share based payment to equity instruments that vested before date of transition to Ind AS.
** Effect due to Share-split and bonus issue.
*** Since no grant has been made, disclosed as not applicable

(ii) SOP - 2017 (Phase I and Phase II): The plan was approved on July 18, 2017. The Board approved the amendment to the Plan on September 04, 2018 and the Members approved the amendment on September 10, 2018.
(iii) The intrinsic value for grants under the SOP-2009 plan is as below-

Rs 456.42** for grants upto 31 March 2012
Rs 436.08** for grants for the year ended 31 March 2013
Rs 528.15** for grants for the year ended 31 March 2014
Rs 769.75** for grants for the year ended 31 March 2015

The details of activity under each Scheme is summarized below-
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Plan (iii)
SOP - 2009 SOP - 2015 (Phase I) SOP - 2015 (Phase II) SOP - 2017 (Phase I) SOP - 2017 (Phase II) SOP - 2022 (Phase I) 

(iv)
SOP - 2022 (Phase II) 

(iv)
SOP - 2022 (Phase III) SOP - 2023 (New Hire 

Grant)
SOP - 2023 

(Performance Grant)
As at 01 April 2023 17,269  21,432  30,850  22,327  8,947  1,58,438   23,067   -   -   -   
Reallocation during the year -   -   -   -   -   (14,571)   14,571   -   -   -   
Granted during the year -   -   -   -   -   7,114  568  38,095   2,689   -   
Forfeited during the year -   -   -   -   -   (24,164)   (7,182)   (2,043)   -   -   
Exercised during the year -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Cancelled during the year -   -   -   -   (1,546)   -   -   -   -   -   
Lapsed during the year -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
As at 31 March 2024 17,269  21,432  30,850  22,327  7,401  1,26,817  31,024  36,052  2,689  -   
Exercisable as at 31 March 2024 17,269  21,432  30,850  22,327  7,401  65,722  9,770  -   -   -   

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Plan (iii) SOP - 2009 SOP - 2015 (Phase I) SOP - 2015 (Phase II) SOP - 2017 (Phase I) SOP - 2017 (Phase II) SOP - 2022 (Phase I) SOP - 2022 (Phase II) SOP - 2022 (Phase III)
SOP - 2023 (New Hire 

Grant)
SOP - 2023 

(Performance Grant)

As at 01 April 2022 10,938  9,953  13,626  13,782  4,077  -   -   -   -   -   
Granted during the year -   -   -   -   -   1,63,801  23,700  -   -   -   
Forfeited during the year -   -   -   -   (100)   (5,363)   (633)   -   -   -   
Exercised during the year -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Cancelled during the year (i) (4,775)   (2,305)   (2,617)   (5,915)   (784)   -   -   -   -   -   
Effect of  Bonus Issue (ii) 11,106  13,784  19,841  14,460  5,754  -   -   -   -   -   
Lapsed during the year -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
As at 31 March 2023 17,269  21,432  30,850  22,327  8,947  1,58,438  23,067  -   -   -   
Exercisable as at 31 March 2023 17,269  21,432  30,850  22,327  8,714  23,294  -   -   -   -   

Number of options

Number of options

The Company had issued Stock options to its employees (including key employees) under the Stock Option Plan (SOP) - 2009, Stock Option Plan (SOP) 2015 (Phase I and II), Stock Option Plan (SOP) 2017 (Phase I and Phase II), Stock Option Plan (SOP) 2022 (Phase I, Phase II & Phase III), SOP - 
2023 New Hire Grant and SOP - 2023 Performance Grant . According to the schemes, the employees are be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, i.e., continuing employment as per the terms of each scheme. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

(i) SOP - 2009:  The plan has exercise period of 12 years from the date of grant to the employees to whom the grants have been made. Further, as per the plan, the ESOP Committee of the Board of Directors has authority to extend the exercise period and the said matter is under discussion. Pending 
final conclusion regarding the extension of exercise period, no adjustments have been made in the accompanying standalone financial statements. 

  Date of joining or any subsequent date decided by the management after approval date of the Scheme
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(iv) 14,571 options granted under SOP - 2022 (Phase I) have been re-allocated in SOP - 2022 (Phase II).

41 b) Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs)

Scheme
Stock Appreciation 

Rights Scheme I, 2020
Stock Appreciation 

Rights Scheme II, 2020

Stock Appreciation 
Rights Scheme III, 

2020

Stock Appreciation 
Rights Scheme IV, 

2022

Stock Appreciation 
Rights Scheme - V
New Hire Grant

Stock Appreciation 
Rights Scheme - V
Performance Grant

Vesting period
Strike price (Rs) 1,130  1,499  2,141    5  15,604  15,604  
Fair value as at 31 March 2024 (Rs) (i) 19,512  19,512  19,512  19,512  19,512  19,512  
Fair value as at 31 March 2023 (Rs) (i) 19,505  19,505  19,505  19,505  -   -   

The details of activity under the Schemes are as below- 

Options outstanding as at 1 April 2023 88,222  2,802  11,209  10,445  -   -   
Add: Granted during the year -   -   -   920  -   -   
Less: Forfeited during the year -   -   -   (220)   -   -   
Less: Cancelled during the year -   -   -   -   -   -   
Less: Lapsed during the year -   -   -   -   -   -   
Options outstanding as at 31 March 2024 88,222  2,802  11,209  11,145  -   -   
Exercisable as at 31 March 2024 88,222  2,802  10,293  8,922  -   -   

Options outstanding as at 1 April 2022 32,700  1,000  4,450  -   -   -   
Add: Granted during the year -   -   -   11,021  -   -   
Less: Forfeited during the year -   -   (1,261)   (576)   -   -   
Less: Cancelled during the year (1,217)   -   -   -   -   -   
Less: Effect of bonus issue 56,739  1,802  8,020  -   -   -   
Options outstanding as at 31 March 2023 88,222  2,802  11,209  10,445  -   -   
Exercisable as at 31 March 2023 76,584  1,961  2,522  1,778  -   -   

c) Basis of Fair value:

d) Details of expenses accounted during the year:
 For the year ended 31 

March 2024 
 For the year ended 31 

March 2023 
Pertaining employee stock option plans (including cost of cancelled options) - Cash settled options 4.99  377.03  
Pertaining employee stock option plans (including cost of cancelled options) - Equity settled options 837.83  968.51  
Pertaining Stock appreciation rights 167.03   639.15  
Less: Amount recovered from related parties (411.01)   (558.62)   

598.84  1,426.07  

(iii) ESOP issued under "SOP-2022 Phase 1,2 & 3 and SOP-2023" have been accounted as Equity settled based on the grant date fair valuation as per Black Scholes model and rest all plans are accounted as cash settled.

(i) Considering the options under the aforesaid scheme would be settled in Cash, the Company has accounted the expense under the Scheme as a liability.

As at 31 March 2024: Fair value determined based on the independent valuation report.
As at 31 March 2023: Fair value is basis the recent transaction price basis which the Company has issued CCPS.  

2 to 4 years (graded vesting)

The Company has issued Stock Appreciation Rights under the "Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme I, 2020", Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme II, 2020 and Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme III, 2020, Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme IV, 2022, Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme - V New Hire 
Grant and  Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme - V Performance Grant  to various employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (including consultants). According to the schemes, such employees/consultants will be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions. The 
other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

(ii) Effect due to bonus issue (Refer note16B(e). The effect of the events has been given to the number of ESOP.

(i) During May 2022, the Board of Directors, approved cancellation of ESOPs held by the employees of the Company at a proposed price of Rs 43,461 less exercise price of each ESOP. The overall limit of the pay-out was approved as USD 10 million. Consequently, the Company cancelled 17,613 options (opted by the
employees at will) at a consideration of Rs 737.18 million. Appropriate provision has been accounted by the Company in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
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42 Financial instruments - accounting classification and fair value measurement

Note No. As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

Financial assets (at fair value)
(i) Investment 6   631.11   2,637.61 

Financial assets (at amortised cost)
(i) Investment 6   459.32   191.73 
(ii) Trade receivables 10   1,082.61   1,254.58 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11   2,137.96   6,930.92 

(iv) Bank balance other than 
cash and cash equivalents 12

  5,145.06   3.05 

13   0.39   19.81 
7 & 14   575.88   584.41 

Total assets   10,032.33   11,622.11 

Financial liabilities (at fair value)
(i) Other financial liabilities 19 & 23 2,024.52    3,729.87 

Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
(i) Lease Liabilities 18 193.64  230.91   
(ii) Trade payables 22 1,577.20  1,599.89   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 & 23 2,212.51   355.89   

  6,007.87   5,916.56 

Quoted prices in active market
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable inputs

(Level 3)

Total

Investment in mutual funds 631.11   -   -   631.11   
Total financial asset measured at fair value 631.11   -   -  631.11   

  Stock Appreciation Rights -  -   2,024.52  2,024.52   
      Employee stock compensation liability -  -   1,877.37  1,877.37   
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value -  -   3,901.89  3,901.89   

Investment in mutual funds 2,637.61  -   -  2,637.61   
Total financial asset measured at fair value 2,637.61  -   -   2,637.61   

  Stock Appreciation Rights -  -   1,857.49  1,857.49   
      Employee stock compensation liability -  -   1,872.38  1,872.38   
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value -  -   3,729.87  3,729.87   

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair values

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair values

The carrying value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, trade payables, other financial liability are considered to be the same as
their fair values due to their short term nature.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities
The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 . The fair value of the
financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

Carrying value and fair value

(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets

(b) Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities:

31-Mar-24

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair values

31-Mar-23

Particulars
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Notes:

Below is the reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Stock Appreciation 
Rights

      Employee stock 
compensation liability

As at 01 April 2022 1,267.36  2,183.87   
Charge to Profit and Loss 477.38  374.19   
Accounted as recoverable from subsidiary 161.76  2.53  
Paid during the year (49.01)   (688.21)   

1,857.49  1,872.38   

As at 01 April 2023 1,857.49  1,872.38   
Charge to Profit and Loss 81.64  4.99  
Accounted as recoverable from subsidiary 85.39  -   

2,024.52  1,877.37   

[This Space has been intentionally left blank]

As at 31 March 2024

Stock Appreciation Rights and
Employee Stock Compensation
Liability

Discounted Cash flow method

External valuers are involved for valuation of Level 3 valuation as described above. The Group management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which
valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

As at 31 March 2023

Cost of equity - 17.02% for year ended 31 March 
2024 and 19.7% for year ended 31 March 2023

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs - Level 3

Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

 c. Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.
Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire management.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets(current), other financial liability (current), lease liabilities (current) and
advance to employees approximates their fair value largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Optionally Convertible and Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares held by Investors is classified as liability and carried at fair value through profit and loss. The Company has
valued the instrument by using the income approach.

The fair value of remaining financial instruments are determined on transaction date based on discounted cash flows calculated using lending/ borrowing rate. Subsequently, these are
carried at amortized cost. There is no significant change in fair value of such liabilities and assets.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Company categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:
 a. Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can assess at the measurement date
 b. Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
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43 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(i) Interest rate risk

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Currency Foreign 
currency

INR currency Foreign currency INR currency

Trade receivables USD 14.44   1,203.32   15.74   1,293.42   
EUR 0.37   32.90   -   -   

Other financial assets USD 5.00   416.31   6.18   508.00   

Trade payables USD 7.25   604.24   11.05   908.08   
GBP -   -   0.03   2.86   
EUR -   -   0.22   19.53   

Foreign currency sensitivity

5% -5% 5% -5%

USD 50.77  (50.77)  44.67  (44.67)   
GBP -  -  (0.14)  0.14  
EUR 1.64  (1.64)  (0.98)  0.98  

(iii) Price risk

b. Credit risk

i) Trade receivables

The Company monitors the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis through ageing analysis and historical collection experience. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored by the Chief Financial Officer. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold
collateral as security.

Change in exchange rate

The Company invests surplus funds in liquid mutual funds and bank deposits. The Company is exposed to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
investment. The Company manages the equity price risk through investing surplus funds in liquid mutual funds on a short term basis.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities (primarily cash and cash equivalents).

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in various currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's
profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Effect on profit before tax in Rs. Millions

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The operations of the Company are
carried out mainly in India and USA. However, the Company exports services to foreign customers and reimburses certain expenses to subsidiary companies. Hence the Company is
currently exposed to the currency risk arising from fluctuation of the above foreign currency and Indian rupee exchange rates. The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting year are as follows, which is unhedged:-

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include loans, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management
ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with
the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. There has been no change
to the Company's exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

a. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and price risk. The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments, loans and
trade receivables, trade payables and lease liabilities.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. The analyses exclude the impact of movement in market variables on: the
carrying values of gratuity and other provisions. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As the Company does not have any
significant borrowings, the impact of change in interest rate is not significant.
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Customer credit risk is managed by the Company subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivable. The Company creates allowance for all trade receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss model (ECL).
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security . The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely
independent markets.
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Opening balance   68.61 69.88  
Impairment (reversal)/ recognised   (30.30)   (1.27)
Closing balance   38.31   68.61 

ii) Other financial assets

On Demand Less than 1 year 1 year to 5 year More than 5 year
As at 31 March 2024

(i) Lease Liabilities - 48.08   202.21   23.22 

(
(ii) Trade payables - 1,577.20   -  - 

   
(

                 - 335.14   3,901.89   - 

As at 31 March 2023
(i) Lease Liabilities - 59.63   256.87   23.22 

0(ii) Trade payables - 1,599.89   -  - 
(iii) Other financial liabilities - 4,030.04   55.72   - 

44 Capital management

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Trade Payables 1,577.20  1,599.89  
Other financial liability 4,237.03  4,085.76  
Lease liability 193.64  230.91  
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2,137.96)  (6,930.92)   
Less : Other bank balances (5,142.01)  -   
Less: Current investments (631.11)  (2,637.61)   
Net adjusted debt (A) (1,903.21)  (3,651.97)   

Total equity capital (B) 4,761.84  6,015.84  

Total debt and equity (C) = (A) + (B) 2,858.63  2,363.87  

Gearing ratio (A)/ (C)* -  -   

*Disclosed as nil for year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 since the same is negative as the Company is funded majorly through own funds and equity investments.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets terms and conditions attached to the interest-bearing loans
and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Non-Cumulative Compulsorily/ Optionally Convertible Preference Shares, securities
premium, all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Group and borrowings. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain a strong
capital base to ensure sustained growth in business and to maximize the shareholders value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing borrowings, trade and
other payables, other financials liabilities, lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits and current investments.

(iii) Other financial liabilities

The following table summarises the change in the loss allowance measured using ECL:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's financing activities are managed centrally by
maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Company's operations. The Company has substantial trade receivable balance which is expected to be recovered
within 12 months. 

c. Liquidity risk

Other financial assets includes security deposits and deposits with banks. Cash and cash equivalents and interest receivable are placed with a reputable financial institution with high credit
ratings and no history of default.
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Ratio Numerator Denominator ` 31 March 2024 ` 31 March 2023 % change Reason

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities  4.07  1.90 114.39% Refer Note 2

Return on Equity ratio Profit / (loss) after tax Average Shareholder’s Equity  (0.40)  (0.77) -48.40%
Decreased due to reduction in
losses during the year.

Inventory Turnover 
ratio 

Cost of goods sold = Purchases 
and change in inventory

Average Inventory  - - 0.00% Not applicable

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio 

Revenue from operations Average Trade Receivables  3.82  2.50 52.44%
Due to increase in trade
receivables

Trade Payable Turnover 
Ratio

Purchases+ other expenses Average trade payables  2.48  3.20 -22.54% Refer Note 2

Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue from operations
Working capital = Current 
assets – Current liabilities

 0.59  0.56 6.23%
Due to increase in revenue for the
year

Net Profit ratio Profit after tax Revenue from operations  (0.48)  (1.10) -56.45%
Decreased due to reduction in
losses during the year.

Return on Capital 
Employed

Profit before taxes and interest Capital Employed  (0.44)  (0.57) -22.91% Refer Note 2

Return on Investment
Income generated from invested 
funds

Average investment funds  0.12  0.13 -13.18% Refer Note 2

Notes:
1) The Company does not have any borrowings as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 and accordingly, debt service coverage ratio and debt equity ratio are not applicable. 
2) Variance less than +/- 25%.

46. Fair value of financial instruments

For the year ended 
31 March 2024

For the year ended  
31 March 2023

Fair value of financial instruments 80.00  80.00  
80.00  80.00  

45. Ratio Analysis

The Company has issued Bonus CCPS to all the shareholders of the Company. Subsequent to the issue,  shareholders approved certain changes to the terms of these CCPS resulting in 
differential fixed conversion ratios. Basis such terms, certain shareholders of the company were entitled for additional equity shares on such conversion by diluting certain incoming investors 
and achievement of valuation related milestones. These Bonus CCPS are considered as financial instruments and fair value on the date of issuance is accounted at fair value through the 
standalone statement of profit and loss. The fair value of these additional equity shares is arrived based on the independent valuation performed by registered valuer.
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47. Other Statutory Information

48. Daily backup of books of account

50. Events after reporting date:

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants      Amagi Media Labs Private Limited

CIN: U73100KA2008PTC045144

per Rajeev Kumar Baskar Subramanian Srividhya Srinivasan
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership number: 213803 DIN: 02014529 DIN: 02014532

Place: Boston, USA Place: Boston, USA
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Kusum Gore Vijay NP
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A41477

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024 Date: 28 August 2024

Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the company shall:

(a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
 Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company is in compliance with number of layers of companies, as prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

(ix)  The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(i)  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(ii)  The Company is not a wilful defaulter to any bank, financial institution or any other lender.
(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC.
(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
 (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

There were no significant events identified after the balance sheet date.

MCA has amended the Rule 3 and 11(g) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (the “Accounts Rules”). As per the amended rules, Companies are required to maintain daily back-
up of the books of account and other relevant books and papers which are maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India and accounting software used for 
maintaining its books of account should have a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along 
with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

In respect of three applications pertaining to accounting ERP, sales management and expense reimbursement, the Company has not maintained back-up of books of account and other 
books and papers in electronic mode on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

Further, the Company has used certain accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the aforesaid softwares, except in respect of the aforesaid applications which are operated by third-party software 
service providers where the Service Organization Controls report was either not available or does not have necessary information on existence of audit trail. 

The management is in the process of taking steps to ensure that the books of account are maintained as required under applicable statute.

51. Absolute amounts less than Rs 5,000 are appearing in the financial statements as "0.00" due to presentation in millions.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

49.The Company has entered into international transactions with its associated enterprises within the meaning of section 92A of the Income Tax Act,1961. The Company is in the 
process of carrying out transfer pricing study, to comply with the requirements of the Income Tax Act,1961 for the year ended 31 March 2024. The Company is of the view that all the
aforesaid transactions have been made at arms' length terms.

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
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